
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

AGENDA 
June 13, 2022 

7:00 p.m. 

City Hall 

 

 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER. 

2. ROLL CALL. 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 

4. INVOCATION. 

5. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA. 

6. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF May 23, 2022 COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING. 

7. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF May 23, 2022 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING. 

8. APPROVAL OF CHECK DISBURSEMENTS TOTALING $ 526,696.01 

9. CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 

10. UNFINISHED AND SPECIAL BUSINESS 

a. Public Hearing for Proposed Water Treatment Plant and Water Distribution System Improvements 

b. Public Hearing for Proposed 2022-2023 Budget 

 

11. ITEMS OF BUSINESS. 

a. Adoption of Resolution 2022-06. A resolution to adopt the final project plan for water system 
improvements and designate an authorized project representative. 

b. Adoption of Resolution 2022-07. A resolution to adopt the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget.    

c. Adoption of Resolution 2022-08. A resolution to adopt a deficit elimination plan. 

d. Approval of Special Event Application.  Approve Special Event Application submitted by Sharing Grace. 

e. Approval of Lot Splits.  Approve lot splits requested by Larry Nolan. 

f. Approval of Police Vehicle Financing.  Approve the financing of a 2022 Ford Police Interceptor Utility 
through Ford Municipal Finance. 

g. Approval of IT Services Contract. Approve the contract with Dewpoint for IT services. 

h. Approval of Montenegro Release Agreement.  

i. Temporary Easement Approval.  Approve temporary easement for alley between King Street and Broad 
Street for gardening purposes to the current owner at 502 S. Main St.  



j. Approval of Card Entry System.  Approve the purchase of a card entry system for City Hall with ARPA 
funds in the amount of $13,914.26. 

k. Approval of Interconnection Agreement.  Approve the Interconnection Agreement with Grand River 
Power Company. 

l. Approval of Power Purchase Agreement.  Approve the Power Purchase Agreement with Grand River 
Power Company. 

 

CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS. 

12. REPORTS. 

a. Fire Chief, Police Chief, City Manager 

b. Council Members. 

c. Mayor 

13. ADJOURNMENT. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NEXT MEETING 

Monday, June 27, 2022 

 

 

Boards and Commissions Openings: 

Local Development Finance Authority 

Zoning Board of Appeals 

Local Officers Compensation Commission 

ADDRESSING THE CITY COUNCIL 

This item on the agenda is for the public to present comments or questions to City Council 

regarding any topic.  Anyone wishing to speak should raise their hand and when recognized by 

the Mayor, should stand, come to the microphone, give their name, and address and proceed 

with their comments or questions. In the interest of time, citizens may be limited to five minutes 

to present their comments or ask questions.  

 



 

 

May 23, 2022 
City Council Worksession 

 

A Worksession of the Eaton Rapids City Council was held at City Hall, 200 S. Main Street, on May 23, 

2022, at 5:00 p.m. 

       

Present were Mayor Colestock and Councilpersons Steele, Nicholas, and Politza.  Robison was absent 

and excused. 

 

Administrative Staff Present were Quality of Life Director Zeller, Fire Chief McNutt, Building Official 

Hummel, Police Chief Weeks, Treasurer Carr, City Attorney Harkness, and DPW/Utilities Director Pierce. 

 

Purpose of the meeting was a worksession. Notice of the meeting was duly given. 

 

Mayor Colestock called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 

 

Public Comments: None 

 

Unfinished and Special Business: None 

 

New Business:  

1. Quality of Life Director Zeller introduced Ms. Hector’s 7th Grade Class who presented and reviewed 

with Council a proposal to study bank erosion at McArthur River Park. 

Public Comments:  None 

Steele moved, Politza seconded, to enter closed session to consider a Matter of Attorney Client Privilege.  

PASSED by roll call vote: 

Yeas:  Steele, Politza, Nicholas, Colestock 

Nays: 0 

Absent: Robison 

Council entered closed session at 5:32 p.m. 

Council reconvened at 6:36 p.m. 

 

The meeting adjourned at 6:37 p.m. 

 

 

 

                                            ______                                                                                                                                                                                

Pamela Colestock, Mayor                                                                     Laura Boomer, City Clerk 



 

 

May 23, 2022  
City Council Meeting    
 

A regular meeting of the Eaton Rapids City Council was held at City Hall, 200 S. Main Street, on May 23, 

2022, at 7:00 p.m. 

       

Mayor Colestock called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 

Present were Mayor Colestock and Councilpersons Steele, Nicholas, and Politza.  Robison was absent 

and excused. 

 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 

 

The invocation was given by Pastor Patricia Lankton of Community Christian Church. 

 

Steele moved,  Politza seconded, PASSED, to approve the agenda. 

 

Steele moved, Politza seconded, PASSED, to approve the May 9, 2022 Worksession Minutes . 

 

Steele moved, Politza seconded, PASSED, to approve the May 9, 2022 Council Meeting Minutes. 

 

Steele moved, Politza seconded, PASSED, to approve the disbursements totaling $582,311.18. 

 

Public Comments:  

Father David and David Swanson of Faith First, 2670 S. Michigan, commented on the Farmers Market 

they are proposing to construct. 

 

Robin Webb, 502 S. Main St., commented on the alley behind her home. 

 

Unfinished/Special Business: 

CWSRF Bond Presentation by Andy Campbell of Baker Tilly. 

 

Items of Business: 

a. Steele moved, Nicholas seconded, PASSED, to approve the proposal for a bank erosion project at 

McArthur River Park submitted by the 7th grade students of Ms. Hector. 

b. Steele moved, Nicholas seconded, PASSED, to approve the proposal from Maner Costerisan for 

accounting and consulting services. 

 

Public Comments: None 

 

Reports: 

a. Staff-  

Fire Chief McNutt reported that the Fire Department responded to two (2) shed fires.  Hose 

testing is complete, and four (4) sections will be replaced.  They are placing flags on Firefighter  

graves for Memorial Day. 

DPW/Utilities Director Pierce reported that the pole barn is nearing completion.  A project walk 

through is scheduled for May 24th at G.A.R. Island Park. 

 



 

 

Council Meeting Minutes                                    -2-                                                               May 23, 2022 

 

 

Treasurer Carr reported that the G.A.R. Island Park is open, and the ORC will open on Memorial 

Day.   

b. Council- 

Councilwoman Politza thanked the audience for attending. 

Councilman Steele thanked staff for moving the City forward.  He thanked DPW and first 

responders. 

c. Mayor-  

Mayor Colestock reported that the Memorial Day Parade will be held on May 30th at 11:00 a.m. 

with a ceremony after at G.A.R. Island Park.  She reported that flags will be placed on graves at 

Rosehill Cemetery on May 28th.  She thanked Councilwoman Politza for passing out flyers and 

Councilman Steele and his wife for their help with Memorial Park cleanup.  She thanked the 

G.A.R. Board.  She reported that the river cleanup event is scheduled for June 10th and thanked 

Paul Malewski for organizing the event. She reported that the Public Safety Building sign 

dedication was well attended. She wished everyone a safe Memorial Day weekend. 

 

Steele moved, Politza seconded, PASSED, to adjourn.  

The meeting adjourned at7:56 p.m. 

 

 

 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                           

Pamela Colestock, Mayor               Laura Boomer, City Clerk 



























 

 

M E E T I N G  D A T E :  0 6 / 1 3 / 2 0 2 2  D E P A R T M E N T  
To: Mayor and City Council  ☐Work Session 

From: Rob Pierce ☒Regular Meeting 

Submitted: 6/6/2022  

Subject: Public Hearing for DWSRF Submittal 

SUMMARY 

 

Announcement of intent to pursue the DWSRF, (Drinking water state revolving fund).  
This fund is designed to help communities with capital improvements to their drinking water infrastructure, to 
ensure that a safe and robust system is maintained. C2Ae has performed the analysis of our infrastructure and 
identified some critical areas in need of replacement / improvement. This analysis has been submitted to the 
state (EGLE) Where it is currently being scored for the approval of said funding. If funding is awarded the state 
will determine the amount and the principal forgiveness and submit the information to the City of Eaton Rapids. 
 The information will be presented to Council where it will be determined if the City of Eaton Rapids accepts 
the funding. 
 

 
 
 

Budget 

 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION 

  
 

LIST OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

Presentation by C2Ae 

 

Resolution to appoint an Authorized Representative 

 

 

 

 



Slide 1 (title) 
Slide 2  

EXISTING WATER SYSTEM INFO 
GROUNDWATER WELLS 

WATER TREAMENT PLANT 
AERATORS/ DETENTION TANK 

HIGH SERVICE PUMPS 
PRESSURE FILTRATION 
PROCESS CONTROLS 

WATER STORAGE 
WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM 

 
Slide 3  

GROUNDWATER WELLS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Slide 4  
WATER TREATMENT PLANT 

• Principal plant uses two (2) aerators, two 2 high service filter feed pumps, three (3) dual-cell horizontal pressure 
filters 

• Conventional detention – filtration method used for iron removal 
 
Slide 5  
AERATORS/ DETENTION TANK 

• Total of two (2) aerators with capacities of 1,500 GPM each 

• The process of aeration oxidizes dissolved iron which is then filtered out later in the treatment process 
 
Slide 6  
HIGH SERVICE PUMPS 

• Total of two (2) vertical centrifugal high service pumps. Current pump ratings are 972 and 1,028 GPM. 

• Pumps take suctions from the detention tank and discharge flow through the pressure filter and into the 
distribution system. 

 
Slide 7  
PRESSURE FILTRATION 

• Total of three (3) dual cell, horizontal pressure filters. Each with a bed area of 195 square feet. Assuming a 
loading rate of 3.0 GPM the capacity of the filters is 1,170 GPM. 

• Pressure filters remove unwanted contaminants before they reach the distribution system. 
 
 
 
 

Table 3 
Water Well Inventory 

Well No. Pump Capacity Head, Feed Motor, H.P. 

1 1,000 62 20* 

3 200 178 15 

4 250 196 15 

5 180 106 15 

7 700 70 20 

8 430 60 20 

*Well pump No. 1 outfitted with a gas engine and right angle drive. 



Slide 8  
PROCESS CONTROLS 

• The water plant high service pump control is based upon level in one of the two elevated storage tanks.   

• Wells are started in a sequence set by the operators.   

• Signals between the wells and elevated tank are transmitted via leased telephone lines. 
 
Slide 9 
 WATER STORAGE 

• The city distribution system uses two (2) elevated storage tank. A 250,000-gallon tank and a 750,000-gallon tank.  

• Each tank provides 61 psi of water pressure at the base location. 
 
Slide 10  
WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM 

• The city water distribution system is comprised of cast iron, ductile iron, and cement-asbestos water main in 
sizes ranging from 2” to 12”. 

• 4” Water main replacement throughout the city will provide increased fire flow capacity 
 
Slide 11  
DRINKING WATER STATE REVOLVING FUND (DWSRF) 
 
WHAT IS IT? 
PROJECT ELIGIBILITIES 
TYPES OF ASSITANCE 
 
Slide 12  
WHAT IS IT? 

• Program setup through the 1996 amendments to the Safe Drinking Water Act (SDWA). 
• A relationship between the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and states to fund water system 

improvements. 
• Congress sets the dollar amount to be allocated to the DWSRF, which is managed by the (EPA). 
• The EPA awards each state a portion of the dollar amount as a grant (with a 20% match by the state). 

 
Slide 13  
WHAT IS IT? 

• Each state puts their awarded grant money with their match into a State Revolving fund (SRF).  
• These funds are awarded to communities (typically as loans) to fund their water system improvements. 
• The loan repayments (with interest) go back into the SRF to help fund future water system improvements in the 

state. 
 
Slide 14  
PROJECT ELIGIBILTIES 

• Improving drinking water treatment 
• Repairing or replacing water mains 
• Improving water supply sources 
• Repairing, replacing, or constructing new storage tanks 
• Any improvement that protects public health 

 
Slide 15  
PROJECT ELIGIBILITIES 

• States must award funds to projects that meet one or more of the following requirements: 
1) Addresses issues deemed the most dangerous to human health 
2) Addresses problems to ensure it complies with the Safe Drinking Water Act 
3) Systems that are in greatest need based on state affordability criteria 



Slide 16  
TYPES OF ASSISTANCE 

• Loans – Interest rates must be set from 0 percent to market rate, with a 30 year repayment period (max). 
• Refinancing  
• Purchasing  
• Guaranteeing local debt 
• Purchasing bond insurance 

 
Slide 17  
TYPES OF ASSISTANCE 

• States MAY award the money as/for the following: 
1) Grant 
2) Principal Forgiveness 
3) Negative Interest Rate Loans 

 
Slide 18  
ELIGIBLE WATER IMPROVEMENTS FOR 2023 
 
HIGH SERVIVE PUMP REPLACEMENT WITH A STAIR ADDITION 
PRESSURE FILTER REPLACEMENT 
4” WATER SERVICE MAIN REPLACEMENT (PRIORITY 1 
Slide 19  
HIGH SERVICE PUMP REPLACEMENT WITH A STAIR ADDITION 

• At the water treatment plant the city intends to replace in-kind the three existing pressure filters as well as the 
high service pumps and add stairs to the top of the detention tank.   

• PROJECTED COST - $1,448,000 
 
Slide 20  
PRESSURE FILTER REPLACEMENT 

• At the water treatment plant the city intends to replace in-kind the three existing pressure filters as well as the 
high service pumps and add stairs to the top of the detention tank.   

• PROJECTED COST - $2,926,500 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Slide 21  
4-INCH WATER MAIN (PRIORITY 1) AND LEAD WATER SERVICE LINE REPLACEMENT 

• In order to improve fire flow and water service reliability, the 4-inch water service main need to be replaced.  

• In the course of water main replacement, lead and galvanized service lines encountered during construction will 
be replaced from the main to the meter. 

 

 
 

• Projected 4-inch water main replacement cost in present dollars – $5,425,500 

• Projected lead or galvanized service lead replacement cost in present dollars – $480,000 
 
Slide 22  
FUTURE PROJECTS (BEYOND 2023) 
4-INCH WATER MAIN (PRIORITY 2) AND LEAD WATER SERVICE REPLACEMENTS 
 
Slide 23 
4-INCH WATER MAIN (PRIORITY 2) AND LEAD WATER SERVICE REPLACEMENTS 

• The City intends to continue to replace sections of 4-inch water main with 6-inch or 8-inch water main in the 

future as well as replacing any lead or galvanized service leads encountered during construction. 

• Projected 4-inch water main replacement cost in present dollars – $12,933,425 

• Projected lead or galvanized service lead replacement cost in present dollars – $2,040,000 

 



1 
 

 
 

CITY OF EATON RAPIDS 

RESOLUTION 2022-06 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE FINAL PROJECT PLAN 

FOR WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS AND 

DESIGNATING AN AUTHORIZED PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Eaton Rapids recognizes the need to make improvements to its existing water 

treatment and distribution system; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Eaton Rapids authorized C2AE to prepare a Project Plan, which recommends the 

construction of; 

1. Water Treatment Plant Pressure Filter Replacement 

2. Water Treatment Plant High Service Pump Replacement 

3. Lead Service Line Replacement 

4. Replacement of smaller 4-Inch water mains at various locations throughout the city 

WHEREAS, said Project Plan was presented at a Public Hearing on June 13, 2022 and all public 

comments have been considered and addressed; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Eaton Rapids formally adopts said Project Plan and 

agrees to implement the selected alternatives (Alternatives) 

1. Water Treatment Plant Pressure Filter Replacement 

2. Water Treatment Plant High Service Pump Replacement 

3. Lead Service Line Replacement 

4. Replacement of smaller 4-Inch water mains at various locations throughout the city 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Public Works/Utilities Director, a position currently held by Robert 

Pierce is designated as the authorized representative for all activities associated with the projects 

referenced above, including the submittal of said Project Plan as the first step in applying to the State of 

Michigan for a Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Loan to assist in the implementation of the selected 

alternatives. 



2 
 

 

Moved by: 

Seconded by: 

Yeas (names of Members voting Yes): 

Nays (names of Members voting No): 

 

I certify that the above Resolution was adopted by the City of Eaton Rapids on June 13, 2022 

 

 

BY:  Laura Boomer                                                               City Clerk    

 Name       Title 

 

 

            

 Signature      Date 



1 

 

 

 

 

 

A RESOLUTION 2022-07 

TO ADOPT A BUDGET 

FOR THE GENERAL MUNICIPAL PURPOSES OF 

THE CITY OF EATON RAPIDS 

FOR THE 2022-2023 FISCAL YEAR 

TO SET THE MILLAGE RATES TO BE LEVIED, AND 

TO APPROPRIATE FUNDS FOR SAID PURPOSES 

 

 

 

WHEREAS,  the Uniform Budgeting and Account Act and Section 7.5 (a) of the Charter of the City of 

Eaton Rapids require that the City Council shall adopt a balanced budget, and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Administration has delivered to the City Council a budget which this City Council 

finds to represent an equitable allocation of anticipated revenue to the various Funds, 

Departments, Boards, functions and activities, and 

 

WHEREAS, Public Acts 40, 41, and 42 of 1995 provide that the City Council may set forth in the 

General Appropriations Act the total number of mills of ad valorem property taxes to be 

levied on real and personal property, and 

 

WHEREAS, the maximum allowable millage that could be levied without a public hearing would be 

9.4089 mills (8.5538 General Fund and .8551 Parks).  

 

WHEREAS, on June 13, 2022, a Public Hearing was held in accordance with the Charter of the City of 

Eaton Rapids and the statutes of the State of Michigan for the purpose of soliciting 

comments on the proposed 2022-2023 Budget and the levy of ad valorem property 

taxes. 



2 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that this City Council does hereby declare this resolution 

to be Adopted which shall provide a Budget for the General Municipal Purposes 

of the City of Eaton Rapids for the Fiscal Year of 2022-2023 and to Set the 

Millage Rates to be Levied, and to Appropriate Funds for said Municipal 

Purposes, as provided below: 

 

   General Fund:     8.5538 mills 

   Parks - Extra Voted:    0.8551 mills 

   Utility Fund - Extra Voted Millage:   4.6679 mills 

 

See Attached Budgets 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that all expenditures set forth herein are appropriated for the 

purpose of the particular Fund and the particular Departments within the Funds 

and shall be expended in accordance with the provisions of the Uniform 

Budgeting and Account Act, and 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the investment of City funds shall comply with the provisions of 

Act 20 P.A. 1943, as amended, and 

 

 

Council Person XXX Offered the foregoing Resolution and moved for its 

Adoption; the Resolution was Seconded by Council Person XXX. 

 

Yeas:   

Nays:   

Absent:   

 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Pamela Colestock, Mayor 

 

 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution offered and 

adopted by the Eaton Rapids City Council at a Regular meeting held on June 13, 2022.  

  

 

                                                                                                   _______________________________          

                                                                                                   Laura Boomer, City Clerk                     



       REVENUE & EXPENDITURE SUMMARY

2022-2023 2022-2023

FUND # Revenue Budget Expenditure Budget

GENERAL FUND 101   

     CITY COUNCIL 101-101 35,175.00$                    

     CITY MANAGER 101-172 46,950.92$                    

     CITY CLERK 101-215 54,050.00$                    

     BOARD OF REVIEW 101-247 500.00$                         

     CITY TREASURER 101-253 2,770,987.66$        54,550.00$                    

     CITY ASSESSOR 101-257 -$                        61,000.00$                    

     ELECTIONS 101-262 17,250.00$                    

     BUILDING AND GROUNDS 101-265 20,000.00$                    

     CEMETARY 101-276 30,200.00$             123,250.00$                  

     UNALLOCATED ADM 101-299 10,000.00$             222,600.00$                  

     POLICE DEPARTMENT 101-301 71,478.00$             1,298,409.33$               

     FIRE DEPARTMENT 101-336 313,525.00$                  

     PUBLIC WORKS 101-441 80,000.00$             763,050.00$                  

     STORM SEWERS 101-445 3,250.00$                      

     AMBULANCE 101-651 14,000.00$                    

     PLANNING COMMISSION 101-721 950.00$                         

     ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 101-722 500.00$                         

     LIBRARY 101-790 20,500.00$                    

     CAPITAL OUTLAY 101-901 115,500.00$                  

     TRANSFERS IN 101-931 560,000.00$           

     FUND BALANCE 101-999 64,844.59$             422,500.00$                  

TOTAL GENERAL FUND 3,587,510.25$        3,587,510.25$               

CEMETERY PERPETUAL CARE FUND 150 10,000.00$             10,000.00$                    



MAJOR STREETS FUND 202 634,500.00$           634,500.00$                  

LOCAL STREETS FUND 203 183,500.00$           183,500.00$                  

EATON COUNTY ROADS 204 179,515.00$           179,515.00$                  

ACT 302 FUNDS 207 1,330.00$               1,330.00$                      

PARKS & RECREATION FUND 208 594,575.00$           594,575.00$                  

4TH OF JULY 209 9,000.00$               9,000.00$                      

ARTS COUNCIL 217 2,500.00$               2,500.00$                      

RENTAL INSPECTION PROGRAM 218 15,050.00$             15,050.00$                    

CURB GRANT 220 6,250.00$               6,250.00$                      

DDA FUND 248 152,633.00$           152,633.00$                  

BUILDING DEPARTMENT FUND 249 175,200.00$           175,200.00$                  

LDFA FUND 280 308,117.50$           308,117.50$                  

AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN 285 275,000.00$           275,000.00$                  

DEBT SERVICE - WWTP TAX FUND 301 703,021.00$           703,021.00$                  

UTILITY FUND 598 12,089,204.57$      12,089,204.57$             

MOTOR POOL FUND 611 185,250.00$           185,250.00$                  

 19,112,156.32$      19,112,156.32$             



1 

 

 
 
 
 

CITY OF EATON RAPIDS 
EATON COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION 2022-08 
RESOLUTION TO ADOPT DEFICIT ELIMINATION PLAN 

 
WHEREAS (Parks and Rec Fund has a deficit fund balance on June 30, 2021; and 
 
WHEREAS, 1971 PA 140 requires that a Deficit Elimination Plan be formulated by the local unit of 
government and filed with the Michigan Department of Treasury; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED that the Parks and Rec Fund’s legislative body adopts the following as 
the Parks & Rec Deficit Elimination Plan: 
 
 

 
City of Eaton Rapids Deficit Elimination Plan 

Park & Rec - 2021 

Fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the Parks & Rec Fund has a $13,793 deficit in the fund balance.  I have 

enclosed a copy of the 2021-2022 budget that shows an excess of $152,882.00. 

The Parks & Rec Fund has added additional sports programming which has increased income to the 

budget.  Also, several of these programs have increased in participant involvement due to more families 

moving into the area. 

The Parks and Rec fund also had an increase in their tax income. 

Expenditures such as 4th of July fireworks are handled through donations and sometimes are reflected in 

the next fiscal budget. 

Additional information may be obtained at City Hall. 

 

 



2 

 

Parks and Rec 
 Year end 

2021   

 Budget for 2021-
22  

    

REVENUES    

Property taxes  $ 91,958.00    $102,563.00  

Licenses and Permits    

Intergovernmental    

  State  $ 21,628.00    $ 20,000.00  

  Local  $    8,000.00    

Charges for services  $  13,687.00    

Interest  $       273.00    $       750.00  

Other  $  19,486.00    $  43,575.00  

TOTAL REVENUES  $155,032.00    $166,888.00  

    

EXPENDITURES    

Current    

  Recreation and culture  $256,440.00    $466,175.00  

Debt Service    

  Principal retirement  $  12,676.00    $    12,000.00  

TOTAL EXPENDITURES  $269,116.00    $  566,675.00  

    

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER    

  (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 
 
$(114,084.00)   $(399,787.00) 

    

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES  $ 100,000.00    $ 400,000.00  

  TOTAL OTHER FINANCING     

      SOURCES  $ 100,000.00    $400,000.00  

    

  NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES  $ (14,084.00)   $166,675.00  

Fund balances, beginning of year  $         291.00    $ (13,793.00) 

    

Fund balance, end of year  $ (13,793.00)   $ 152,882.00  

 

Moved by:   
Seconded by:   
Yeas:   
Nays:   
Absent:   
 
 
 



3 

 

CERTIFICATE  
 
I, Laura Boomer, City Clerk for the City of Eaton Rapids, Michigan, certify this to be a true and complete 
copy of Resolution No. 2022-08, duly adopted by a vote of the Eaton Rapids City Council at their regular 
meeting on June 13, 2022.  
 
Date: June 13, 2022 
 

______________________  
Laura Boomer, City Clerk  

 

















 

 

M E E T I N G  D A T E :  0 6 / 1 3 / 2 0 2 2                        B U I L D I N G  D E P A R T M E N T  
 

To: Mayor and City Council 

From: LeRoy Hummel, Building Official  

Submitted: 06/01/2022  

Subject:  Land Divisions – Chester Streets 

 

SUMMARY 

 

The Planning Commission reviewed    land divisions presented by Larry Nolan for land he owns on and Chester Street.    

  
  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION 

 
Approve the land divisions.  
 

LIST OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

 

Planning Commission minutes 

 

 



 

 

Planning Commission Meeting 

May 2, 2022 

 

A regular meeting of the Planning Commission was held at City Hall, 200 S. Main Street on May 2, 2022, 

at 7:00 p.m. 

 

Chair Vanek called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. Present were Chair Vanek and Commissioners 

Halsey, Wegner, Loftus, Hiltz, Wicker, Skinner, and Baker. DeGrow, was absent and excused. 

 

Also in attendance were Building Official LeRoy Hummel. 

 

Halsey moved, Hiltz seconded, PASSED, to approve the agenda as printed. 

 

Wegner moved, Loftus seconded, PASSED, to approve the March 16, 2022 minutes as printed. 

 

Public Comments:  None 

 

Public Hearings:  

a. Public Hearing to consider a request for review of a Lot Split Application for the following properties:  

23-300-084-601-060-00 commonly known as 411 Lewis  

23-300-084-601-091-00 commonly known as 903 Chester  

23-300-084-602-030-00 commonly known as 904 Chester  

23-300-084-602-070-00 commonly known as 906 Chester  

23-300-084-603-050-00 commonly known as 908 Chester  

23-300-084-601-101-00 commonly known as 911 Chester  

Skinner moved, Baker seconded, PASSED, to open the public hearing.  The public hearing  opened at 

7:02 p.m. Larry Nolan appeared before the commission to review the application. Building Official 

Hummel provided additional clarification.  There were no further questions or comments. Baker 

moved, Halsey seconded, PASSED, to close the public hearing. The Public Hearing closed at 7:54 p.m.  

The Commission discussed the request.  Halsey moved, Skinner seconded, PASSED, to recommend 

the lot splits to City Council with the following conditions: 

1. Parcel 1- tabled because of possible sale to 807 Water.  Need to determine size. 

2. Parcel 2- minus 20’ on SE side to be added to parcel 3 (see drawing). 

3. Parcel 3- add 20’ on NW side from parcel 2. 

4. Parcel 4- minus 7.5’ from SE side to be added to parcel 5. 

5. Parcel 5- add 7.5’ to NW side from parcel 4 and add 10’ to SE side from parcel 6. 

6. Parcel 6- minus 10’  from NW line to be added to parcel 5. 

7. Parcel 7- existing 

8. Parcel 8- existing 

9. Parcel 9- as shown 

10. Parcel 10- as shown 

11. Parcel 11- as shown 

12. Parcel 12- as shown  



 

 

Planning Commission Meeting      2              May 2, 2022 

 

 

Old Business: 

a. Developer Lynn Ball advised the Planning Commission that he has switched direction with the 

proposed development on Oakridge Dr.  He no longer wants to develop a subdivision.  He wants to 

build a private road with 4 lots to achieve financial success.  Co-Developer Ben Colestock advised he 

would like to demolish an existing house on Oakridge and use the existing well and drain field when 

he rebuilds. 

 

New Business: None 

 

Reports:   

Building Official Hummel advised Planning Commission of the City Attorney’s opinion. 

 

Wicker moved, Halsey seconded, PASSED, to adjourn.  

Meeting adjourned at 9:03 p.m. 

 

 







 

 

M E E T I N G  D A T E :  0 5 / 2 3 / 2 0 2 2  P O L I C E  D E P A R T M E N T  
To: Mayor and City Council  ☒Work Session 

From: Larry Joe Weeks, Chief of Police ☒Regular Meeting 

Submitted: 05/05/2022  

Subject: Ford Motor Credit Financing of Police Vehicle 

SUMMARY 

We have a fully marked and equipped 2016 Ford Police Utility (purchased in 2015) vehicle that is scheduled for 
replacement in the 2022-2023 budget year. The new 2022 Ford Police Utility vehicle has been ordered with its 
expected delivery in fall of 2022. The vehicle has been budgeted for in the current 2022-2023 budget. Historically, 
the Treasurer and prior City Managers have preferred the lease to own option to minimize the impact on the 
budget within a single budget year.  
 
The total cost of the vehicle, extended warranty, equipment and installation of equipment is $50,291.00. The 
attached document from Ford Municipal Finance lays out the financing offer for this vehicle. Essentially, it’s a 
three-year financing at 6.99% with a payment of $18,102.26 per year. Ford Municipal Finance demands the local 
governments approval and I must submit a copy of the approved budget and the minutes form the meeting 
approving the financing to be able to move forward.  
 
The 2016 Ford Police Utility will be stripped of its markings and retained for use. With the addition of a detective 
and the SRO position we will need the additional car for administrative purposes once we are fully staff. In the 
event the vehicle because a maintenance issue, we will sell it.  
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION 

  

A motion to approve the financing  of the 2022 Ford Police Interceptor Utility through Ford Municipal 
Finance as quoted.  
 

LIST OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

Financing Quote 

Financing Application 

 

 

 

 

 

 







 

 

M E E T I N G  D A T E :  0 6 / 1 3 / 2 0 2 2  D E P A R T M E N T  
To: Mayor and City Council  ☒Work Session 

From: Larry Joe Weeks, Chief of Police & Utilities Director Rob Pierce ☒Regular Meeting 

Submitted: 06/03/2022   

Subject: Dewpoint Managed Services Agreement Renewal 

SUMMARY 

The City of Eaton Rapids contracted with Dewpoint two years ago to provide IT support services throughout the 
city. At the time it was a transition from another vendor. The current agreement expires on August 31st, 2022 
with the final invoice being sent July 31st, 2022. The managed services agreement allows for up to two, one-year 
extensions as outlined on the Eaton Rapids Managed Services Statement of Work (SOW) document that is 
attached (pg 33).  

 

With the contract due to expire City Council can choose to extend the contract for one year at a cost of $4257.77 
per month (down from $4777.24, due to transition fees dropping off). Or, choose to send notice of intent to cancel 
the contract and seek another vendor.  

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION 

Utilities Director Pierce and I have reviewed the contract and are recommending council approve a one-year 
extension.  

  

A motion to approve a one-year extension of the Dewpoint Managed Services Agreement at a cost of 
$4257.44 per month.  
 

LIST OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

City of Eaton Rapids Managed Services Agreement 

Eaton Rapids Managed Services Statement of Work 

 

 

 

 

 

 











































































adesentz
Typewritten text
Aaron Desentz

adesentz
Typewritten text
City Manager, Eaton Rapids

adesentz
Typewritten text
04/07/2020



 

Dewpoint | Confidential Information   
 1 

Master Services Agreement 2019 

Master Services Agreement 
 

 
This Master Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is dated ___4/1/2020_________ between Dewpoint 
Inc. (“Dewpoint”) located at 300 S. Washington Square, Suite 200, Lansing, MI 48933, and the City of 
Eaton Rapids (“Client”) having offices at 200 S. Main St., Eaton Rapids, MI, 48827.  Dewpoint and Client 
may each be referred to individually as a “Party” or together as “Parties” as the context requires.   
 
WHEREAS, Dewpoint is in the business of providing Services and/or Deliverables as defined herein; and 

WHEREAS, Client desires to enter into a nonexclusive contractual relationship for the provision of Services 
and/or Deliverables;  

THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth below, and for good and valuable 
consideration, the Parties agree as follows: 
 

1. Services 
 

Client hereby retains Dewpoint to perform, and Dewpoint hereby agrees to render, on the terms and 
conditions hereof, the Services and/or Deliverables described in one or more Statements of Work 
(“SOW(s)”) specifically detailing the work to be performed as mutually agreed and executed by both 
Dewpoint and Client.  The terms of this Agreement shall be incorporated into each SOW, and each SOW 
shall become an addendum to this Agreement.  The SOW will include all applicable rates and charges for 
the Services and/or Deliverables to be performed pursuant to the SOW.  Additionally, based upon the 
type of services to be performed, each individual SOW may be subject to additional terms and 
conditions that shall be incorporated in an addendum to this Agreement.  
 

2. Independent Contractor; Dewpoint Consultant 
 

Dewpoint is an independent contractor for the Services and/or Deliverables provided under this 
Agreement and each SOW.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create a partnership, joint 
venture or agency relationship between the Parties.  Neither Party shall have the right to act on behalf 
of or to contractually obligate or bind the other in any manner whatsoever.  
 
The personnel assigned by Dewpoint to perform the Services and/or Deliverables will be qualified to 
perform their assigned duties.  All such personnel shall perform their work in a professional manner.  The 
Services and/or Deliverables provided by Dewpoint shall be rendered in person, by telephone or by other 
means, as specified in each SOW.  Except as may be specified otherwise in the SOW, Dewpoint shall make 
its personnel available for the purpose of rendering the Services and/or Deliverables during normal 
business hours, i.e., 8:30 a.m. - 5 p.m., Monday through Friday, and as needed to support software, 
services, and technology Dewpoint personnel are assigned to create, manage, or support, which may 
occur outside of normal business hours to avoid disruption to normal business activities, except for the 
holidays observed by Dewpoint. 
 

3. Term 
 



 

Dewpoint | Confidential Information   
 2 

Master Services Agreement 2019 

This Agreement will become effective when signed by both parties and shall continue for a period of 
Two (2) years (the “Term”). This Agreement may be extended or renewed by a written agreement 
signed by both parties in accordance with Section 13.0.  Client recognizes that, notwithstanding any 
provision to the contrary herein, Dewpoint’s work and the completion thereof are expressly conditioned 
upon Client's cooperation with Dewpoint and Client’s timely performance and completion of its 
responsibilities hereunder.  Should any delays in Dewpoint’s performance occur as a result of Client’s 
failure to perform (or timely perform) its responsibilities hereunder, which failure prevents the 
performance or completion (in whole or in part) of the Services, (a) the Term shall be automatically 
extended to the extent of any such delay, and (b) Dewpoint shall not incur any liability to Client as a 
result of such delay. 
 

4. Invoicing and Payment 
 

4.1. Invoices.  Dewpoint will invoice on a monthly basis. Dewpoint will generate and forward to 
Client an invoice ("Invoice").  Each Invoice shall include details of the Services performed and/or 
Deliverables provided as outlined in the applicable SOW and a bill for all fees, Expenses, and other 
amounts due to Dewpoint in connection with such Services and/or Deliverables (collectively, the 
"Compensation").   
 
4.2. Payment of Compensation.  Client shall pay all undisputed amounts outstanding under each 
Invoice in full 30 days after receiving such Invoice.  Billed amounts shall be deemed overdue and subject 
to late charges if unpaid for more than thirty (30) days.  All amounts shall be paid directly to Dewpoint 
at: Accounts Receivable, Dewpoint, 300 S. Washington Square, Suite 200, Lansing, MI, 48933. 

 
5. Changes to Scope of Services 

 
Client, without invalidating the Agreement or applicable SOW, may request changes in the Services 
and/or Deliverables consisting of additions, deletions or other revisions by submitting a written change 
order to Dewpoint.  Dewpoint shall, within a reasonable amount of time not to exceed ten (10) business 
days, provide a written change order response which outlines any additional Services and/or 
Deliverables to be provided to effectuate the requested change, as well as any impact to time of 
performance and Compensation.  Client shall authorize and approve the change in writing before 
Dewpoint is obligated to proceed with such change(s).  Any changes not approved through this process 
will not be effective and Dewpoint will not be eligible for any additional compensation by Client for such 
Services and/or Deliverables, nor shall Dewpoint be liable for any requested change in Services and/or 
Deliverables not approved in writing by Client. All approved changes shall be attached as written 
amendments to the applicable SOW.  
 
5.1 Ownership 
 
Except as otherwise set forth herein, the entire right, title, and interest in Deliverables, including, 
without limitation, the software, documentation, source code, object code, scripts, frameworks, and all 
modifications to the foregoing, and all components or elements thereof, together with all proprietary 
rights relating thereto, including, without limitation, all intellectual property rights, such as, without 
limitation, copyrights, patent and trade secret rights, are the exclusive property of the Client.  Under no 



 

Dewpoint | Confidential Information   
 3 

Master Services Agreement 2019 

circumstances may Dewpoint or its personnel use the Deliverables, or any component part thereof, for 
its own benefit or for the benefit of any third party. 
 
 
Deliverables shall be deemed works-for-hire and shall be the exclusive property of Client. Dewpoint 
expressly agrees to assign to Client the copyright in any Deliverables that do not meet the requirements 
of a work-for-hire under the U.S. Copyright Act, as soon as such work is fixed in a tangible form or 
medium.  Additionally, independent of the U.S. Copyright Act, Dewpoint agrees to assign and hereby 
assigns to Client, to the fullest extent possible under the law, all of its right, title and interest, if any, in 
and to the Deliverables, including, but not limited to, all copyrights, patent rights, trade secrets, 
trademarks, moral rights and all other applicable proprietary and intellectual property rights. Dewpoint 
further agrees to execute and directs its employees, contractors, and other personnel to execute and 
deliver such instrument(s) and to take such action(s) as may be required and/or requested by Client to 
confirm and/or defend Clients sole and exclusive ownership of the Deliverables. 
 
 

6. Client Representations, Warranties and Responsibilities 
 

6.1. Authority.  Client represents and warrants to Dewpoint that (a) it has the right and authority to 
execute and deliver this Agreement and to perform its obligations hereunder, and (b) neither this 
Agreement nor the performance of this Agreement will place Client in breach of any other contract or 
obligation. 
 
6.2. Disclosure of Information.  Client shall provide Dewpoint, in a timely fashion, with all 
information reasonably required for Dewpoint’s performance of the Services and/or Deliverables.  Client 
represents and warrants to Dewpoint, as of the effective date of each SOW, that all information 
necessary to Dewpoint’s full understanding of the Services and/or Deliverables to be provided under 
such SOW has been disclosed or provided to Dewpoint.  Client shall keep Dewpoint informed of any new 
or changed information that may be necessary to enable Dewpoint to provide the Services and/or 
Deliverables in a timely manner. 

 
7. Confidentiality 

 
Both Parties hereby acknowledge that they will have access to information that is proprietary or 
otherwise confidential to the other ("Confidential Information").  Confidential Information shall include, 
without limitation, information regarding the other Party’s management, business, organizational 
structure, policies, procedures, business relationships, intellectual property, copyrights, patents, 
trademarks, software, data, databases, system designs, specifications, documentation, code, 
architecture, structure, algorithms, techniques, processes, protocols, product materials, notes, slides, 
ideas, customer lists, customer information or materials, the products and/or services produced and/or 
rendered hereunder, and the terms and conditions of this Agreement, each SOW, and all Addendums.  
Confidential Information shall not include information which: 
 

(a) is or becomes a part of the public domain, except as a result of a breach of this provision; 
 



 

Dewpoint | Confidential Information   
 4 

Master Services Agreement 2019 

(b) was received by either party from a third party who is not subject to any restriction on 
disclosure; 

   
(c) is independently developed by a Party without reference to the disclosing Party's Confidential 

Information;  
 
(d) is required to be disclosed by a Party pursuant to law or regulation, governmental authority 

or duly authorized subpoena, court order or administrative process, whereupon said Party 
shall, to the extent permitted by law, provide notice to the disclosing Party prior to such 
disclosure and reasonably cooperate with the disclosing Party in any effort that it may 
undertake to obtain confidential treatment of such information required to be disclosed; or  

 
(e) the disclosing Party approves for disclosure by prior written consent. 

 
Each Party agrees: 
 

(a) to hold the Confidential Information of the other Party in confidence and to use such 
Confidential Information only in connection with the performance of the Party’s obligations 
under this Agreement;  

 
(b) not to make any copies of such Confidential Information or any part thereof without the 

express written permission of the other Party;  
 
(c) not to disclose such Confidential Information or any part thereof to a person outside the 

Party's business organization for any purpose;  
 
(d) to limit dissemination of such Confidential Information to persons within that Party's business 

organization who have a need to see the Confidential Information in connection with the 
performance of its obligations under this Agreement; and  

 
(e) to return and permanently destroy such Confidential Information and any copies thereof to 

the disclosing Party upon termination of this Agreement, or at such earlier date as the 
disclosing Party may require. 

 
It is understood and agreed that in the event of a breach of this section, damages are deemed not to be 
an adequate remedy, that irreparable harm is immediate and imminent, that the owner of the 
Confidential Information shall automatically be entitled to seek injunctive relief to restrain any actual or 
threatened breach, and that the equities of such an injunction tip decidedly in favor of the owner of the 
Confidential Information. 
 

8. Mutual Indemnification 
 

Each Party (the “Indemnifying Party”), at its expense, will defend (or, at its option, settle), indemnify, 
and hold the other Party (the “Indemnitee”) harmless from, any claims, actions, damages, liabilities, 
costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees and court costs) arising out of the performance 



 

Dewpoint | Confidential Information   
 5 

Master Services Agreement 2019 

of this Agreement with respect to:  (a) claims that any Deliverable or Client Material (as applicable) 
provided by the Indemnifying Party infringes or otherwise violates any third party Intellectual Property 
Rights; (b) the design, drawings or specifications of the Indemnifying Party, its agents, employees, 
consultants or subcontractors;   (c) any violation of any law, ordinance or regulation by the Indemnifying 
Party, its officers, directors, agents, employees, or subcontractors (d) any claims by the Indemnifying 
Party’s subcontractors, materialmen, or suppliers, or (e) any other claims resulting from, arising out of, 
or related to, the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the Indemnifying Party, its agents, employees, 
consultants or subcontractors.    If the Indemnifying Party elects to settle it must first seek approval of 
such settlement from the Indemnitee, and such approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. 
 
In the event that an Intellectual Property Rights claim is brought (or either of the Parties becomes aware 
that such a claim may be asserted) against Client or Dewpoint with respect to a Deliverable, Dewpoint 
shall have the right and option, in its sole discretion and at its expense, to (i) procure for Client the right 
to use the allegedly infringing material; (ii) modify the allegedly infringing material so that it is not 
infringing; and/or (iii) require Client to cease using such allegedly infringing material.   
 
Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, Dewpoint shall have no liability or 
obligation to indemnify Client for any Intellectual Property Rights claim to the extent that such claim is 
based upon:  (i) any software, or any part of the Software, Documentation or Deliverables which is 
developed by or for, or licensed from, Client or any third party; (ii) the combination, by the Client or a 
third party, of a Deliverable with any hardware, software or other technology not developed by 
Dewpoint;  (iii) the modification of a Deliverable by Client or by any person other than Dewpoint; (iv) 
Client’s misuse of a Deliverable; (v) a product that Client designs or markets; (vi) specifications 
developed or approved by Client; or (vii) Client Material.  This provision sets forth each Party’s entire 
liability and the other Party’s sole and exclusive remedy with respect to any alleged intellectual property 
infringement by any Deliverable. 
 
The Indemnitee must (i) notify the Indemnifying Party promptly in writing of any third party claim or 
action with respect to which indemnification is sought under this Section; (ii) provide the Indemnifying 
Party with all reasonable information and assistance to settle or defend such claim or action; and (iii) 
grant to the Indemnifying Party authority and control of the defense or settlement of the claim; further 
provided, however, that (x) the failure to so notify, provide information and assistance and/or grant 
authority and control will relieve the Indemnifying Party of its obligation to Indemnitee hereunder only 
if and to the extent that the Indemnifying Party is prejudiced thereby, and (y) the Indemnitee shall have 
the right, at its expense, to participate in any legal proceeding to contest and defend a claim and to be 
represented by legal counsel of its choosing. 
 

9. Limitations of Liabilities and Remedies  
 

WITH THE EXCEPTIONS OF EACH PARTY’S INDEMNIFICATION, DEFENSE, AND HOLD HARMLESS 
OBLIGATIONS AND ANY CLAIMS ARISING FROM A PARTY’S WILLFUL MISCONDUCT OR BREACH OF ITS 
CONFIDENTIALITY OBLIGATIONS, IN NO EVENT SHALL EITHER PARTY BE RESPONSIBLE FOR LOSS OF 
BUSINESS INCOME, PROFITS, SAVINGS, OR DATA, OR ECONOMIC, INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT, 
CONSEQUENTIAL, PUNITIVE, OR SPECIAL DAMAGES, EVEN IF SUCH PARTY HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE 
LIKELIHOOD OF SAME OR IF THE SAME ARE FORESEEABLE. FUTHERMORE, IN NO EVENT SHALL 



 

Dewpoint | Confidential Information   
 6 

Master Services Agreement 2019 

DEWPOINT HAVE ANY LIABILITY FOR ANY LOSS OF OR INABILITY TO USE ANY COMPUTER, SYSTEM OR 
COMPONENT, WHETHER THE SAME ARE INCURRED OR SUFFERED BY CLIENT OR ANY THIRD PARTY, AND 
WHETHER BASED IN CONTRACT, WARRANTY, STRICT LIABILITY, OR TORT, EVEN IF DEWPOINT SHALL 
HAVE BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES OR LOSSES. DEWPOINT’S TOTAL LIABILITY 
TO CLIENT UNDER THIS AGREEMENT FOR ANY SERVICE OR DELIVERABLE OTHER THAN DATA HOSTING 
AND/OR MANAGED SERVICES SHALL BE LIMITED TO THE AMOUNT PAID BY CLIENT FOR ANY SUCH 
SERVICE AND/OR DELIVERABLE DURING THE THREE-MONTH PERIOD PRECEDING THE INCIDENT GIVING 
RISE TO THE CLAIM FOR DAMAGES. DEWPOINT’S TOTAL LIABILITY TO CLIENT UNDER THIS AGREEMENT 
FOR DATA HOSTING AND/OR MANAGED SERVICES SHALL BE LIMITED TO PROVEN DIRECT DAMAGES IN 
AN AGGREGATE AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED TWO MILLION DOLLARS ($2,000,000.00). THESE LIMITATIONS 
APPLY REGARDLESS OF THE FORM OF IN WHICH ANY LEGAL OR EQUITABLE ACTION MAY BE BROUGHT, 
WHETHER IN CONTRACT, WARRANTY, STRICT LIABILITY OR TORT. 
 
In addition, Client hereby releases Dewpoint from any liabilities or costs relating to the Services and/or 
Deliverables to the extent such liabilities or costs are attributable to any false, inaccurate or incomplete 
information provided by or on behalf of Client.  
 
Neither Party may assert any claim or bring any action or proceeding, except for warranty claims 
pursuant to Section 6 , against the other Party under this Agreement or in connection with the Services 
and/or Deliverables unless the Party asserting such claim or bringing such action or proceeding has first 
given the other Party written notice setting forth the basis for such claim or action in reasonable detail 
within 180 days of the date on which the Party asserting such claim or bringing such action or 
proceeding knew or should have known the facts giving rise thereto.  Nothing in this Section shall extend 
or enlarge any applicable warranty claim period. 
 
 
 

10. Force Majeure  
 

Neither Party shall be held responsible for, nor deemed to be in default under this Agreement, because 
of any delay or failure in performance if such delay or failure is the result of causes beyond the 
reasonable control of the Party affected (provided such causes do not result from the negligence of such 
Party).   Each Party shall be excused  from performance under this Agreement and shall have no liability 
to the other Party for any period during which it is prevented from performing any of its obligations 
(other than payment obligations), in whole or in part, as a result of delays caused by the other Party or 
by an act of God, fire, flood, earthquake, transportation disruption, labor dispute, war, terrorism, civil 
unrest, insurrection, court order or any other cause beyond the reasonable control of such Party (all such 
causes collectively referred to herein as “Force Majeure”).  The Party affected by an event of Force 
Majeure, upon giving prompt notice to the other Party thereof, shall be excused from performance 
hereunder on a day-to-day basis to the extent of the prevention, restriction or interference caused by such 
event.  The Party affected shall use its commercially reasonable efforts to avoid or remove such cause and 
to minimize the consequences thereof and shall resume performance hereunder forthwith upon removal 
of such cause. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Force Majeure shall not excuse any payment obligations 
under this Contract. 
 



 

Dewpoint | Confidential Information   
 7 

Master Services Agreement 2019 

11. Non-Solicitation 
 

Dewpoint shall not knowingly, during the term of this Agreement and for a period of one year after its 
completion, solicit for employment any person who is or has been employed by Client during the term 
of this Agreement, without the prior written consent of Client.  
 
Client shall not knowingly, during the term of this Agreement and for a period of one year after its 
completion, solicit for employment any person who is or has been employed by Dewpoint during the 
term of this Agreement, without the prior written consent of Dewpoint. 
 
Nothing contained herein shall preclude a Party from hiring or retaining an employee or independent 
contractor, or any person who is or has been employed by the other Party during the term of this 
Agreement, arising from general and public advertising. 
 
If Client solicits and employs any employee of Dewpoint within the one-year period without written 
consent, the Client agrees to pay Dewpoint an amount equal to One Hundred Percent (100%) of the 
solicited/employed employee’s base annual compensation package. Said payment shall constitute 
liquidated damages and shall not constitute or be deemed a penalty. 
 

12. Assignment 
 

Client shall not sublet, assign, delegate, or otherwise transfer any part or all of this Agreement, nor any 
interest therein, without the express written approval of Dewpoint. In the event of any written approval 
of assignment by Dewpoint, said approval shall not relieve or release Client from full compliance and 
responsibility for execution of all of its obligations and requirements under this Agreement. 
 
 

13. Termination 
 
13.1. Termination Without Breach.  Either Party may terminate this Agreement for any reason (other 
than a material breach by the other Party) upon thirty (30) days written notice to the other Party; 
provided, however, that any outstanding SOW shall continue to be effective for the Services and/or 
Deliverables described therein and not yet performed, and such SOW shall continue to be governed by 
this Agreement as if it had not been terminated until such time as all Services under the SOW have been 
performed and paid for, or the SOW is terminated in accordance with the terms thereof. 
 
13.2. Termination Upon Breach.  If a Party is in material breach of this Agreement, the other Party may 
notify such Party in writing specifying the nature of the breach.  Upon receipt of such notice, the breaching 
Party shall have thirty (30) days from receipt of the notice to cure the breach, and if the breach is not 
cured within such period the non-breaching Party may terminate this Agreement immediately upon the 
giving of written notice to the breaching Party.  In the event of termination by either Party pursuant to 
this Section 13.2, Client shall pay Dewpoint all Compensation accrued for Services and/or Deliverables (or 
portions thereof) rendered to the date of such termination within thirty (30) days after submission by 
Dewpoint of a final Invoice. 
 



 

Dewpoint | Confidential Information   
 8 

Master Services Agreement 2019 

13.3. Return of Materials. Upon termination of this Agreement, each Party shall return (and destroy 
upon request of the disclosing Party) all materials containing Confidential Information received from the 
other Party that is then in such Party’s possession or control, provided that unless Client is in material 
breach of the confidentiality or licensing terms set forth herein, Client may retain for its use in 
accordance herewith copies of Deliverables for which payment has been made in full. In the event 
materials containing such Confidential Information of the other Party are destroyed, the Party 
destroying such materials shall give written certification of such destruction to the other Party.  
 

13.4    Term Extension. After the initial Term end date, Dewpoint may allow The Client to enter into a 
month to month agreement for continued Services.  This option may be exercised at the sole discretion 
of Dewpoint for a specific term and may also result in additional monthly costs.  Both the monthly Term 
of the agreement and monthly costs must be mutually agreed upon 90 days prior to the current contract 
end date. 13.5 Termination Fees.   Any termination fees payable in accordance with any SOW shall be 
due and payable on the effective date of termination.  If termination of a SOW is due to Client’s breach 
of its payment obligations or if Client is in default of its payment obligations as of  the date of 
termination, and Client requests and Dewpoint agrees to provide Transition Assistance Services to Client 
as set forth in Section 14 Dewpoint may require Client to pay for such Transition Assistance Services 
and/or any applicable termination fees in advance of providing such Transition Assistance Services. 
Except as otherwise set forth in the applicable SOW, no termination fee or other amount shall be 
payable by Client in connection with the termination of such SOW.  No termination fee or other amount 
shall be payable by Client in connection with the termination of this Agreement. 

13.5   Partial Termination Fee Adjustment.  If Client terminates a portion of the Services pursuant to 
any provision of this Agreement or any SOW, then any applicable transition fees shall be adjusted in 
accordance with the applicable SOW. 

 

14. Transition 

Upon non-renewal or termination of a SOW for any reason, other than termination of this Agreement 
and any SOW by Dewpoint as a result of Client’s breach or insolvency, and upon Client providing 
Dewpoint written notice at least ninety (90) days prior to expiration or termination of this Agreement, 
Dewpoint will, at Client’s request, provide Transition Assistance Services (billed at Dewpoint’s then-
existing time and material rates for such service’s ), as described in this Section, on the terms set forth in 
this Agreement during a period of up to six (6) months after the date of termination or non-renewal of 
the Agreement and/or SOW (“Transition Assistance Period”).  During the Transition Assistance Period, 
Dewpoint will cooperate with Client and its designees and provide the assistance reasonably requested 
by Client or its designee to allow Client’s business operations to continue without material interruption 
or adverse effect and to facilitate the orderly transfer of responsibility for the Services then being 
provided by Dewpoint to Client or its designees, including the following: (a) continuing to perform the 
Services then being performed by Dewpoint; (b) developing, with the assistance of Client or its 
designees, a plan for the transition of the Services then being performed by Dewpoint to Client or its 
designees; and (c) Dewpoint will use reasonable commercial efforts to assist Client or its designees to 
obtain (on a non-exclusive basis) any third party services then being used by Dewpoint in the 
performance of the Services.  Except as may otherwise be agreed to in writing by both Parties, Dewpoint 



 

Dewpoint | Confidential Information   
 9 

Master Services Agreement 2019 

shall have no obligation to continue providing Transition Assistance Services beyond the Transition 
Assistance Period, regardless of whether the Services have been fully transitioned to Client or Client’s 
new vendor at the expiration of the Transition Assistance Period.   

15. Safety and Security Procedures. 

Client shall maintain and enforce at Client’s locations safety and security procedures that are at least 
equal to the most stringent of the following: (1) the applicable industry standards for such locations, 
(2) those procedures applicable to the Client’s service locations, as may be amended by Client from time 
to time (subject to Standard Change Control Process) and (3) any higher standard otherwise agreed 
upon by the Parties.  Dewpoint shall comply with the applicable safety and security procedures at each 
of Client’s service location, as noted above.  Client shall make such safety and security procedures 
available to Dewpoint from time to time, or upon Dewpoint’s reasonable request.   
  

16. Data Security.   

16.1   General.   

Dewpoint shall establish, maintain and comply with its data safeguards which are designed to protect 
against the destruction, loss, damage, corruption, alteration, loss of integrity, commingling or 
unauthorized access of Client Data. Client and Dewpoint shall each comply with their respective data 
security policies.    Except as otherwise set out in a SOW, Dewpoint shall provide all equipment and 
Software necessary to implement and maintain its data safeguards. 

Dewpoint shall not disclose or disseminate Client Data to any other party without Client’s prior written 
consent, unless legally required.  If Dewpoint is legally required to disclose or disseminate Client Data, 
Dewpoint will, to the extent permitted by law, provide prompt advance written notice to Client.  
 
16.2  Data Security Updates.  Dewpoint shall follow the Standard Change Control Process for any data 
security updates that are applicable to Client.   

16.3  Data Security Incidents.   Client shall designate an individual responsible for coordinating all 
data security related matters under this Agreement (“Client Data Manager”).   In the event that 
Dewpoint or any of its agents discovers or is notified of a Data Security Incident that is relevant to the 
Client’s environment, Dewpoint shall promptly notify the Client Data Manager regarding such Data 
Security Incident.  In the event of a Data Security Incident, Dewpoint shall (i) investigate and mitigate  
the effects of the Data Security Incident; (ii) take no unnecessary action that destroys or impairs any 
evidence with respect to the Data Security Incident; (iii) document in an appropriate manner the Data 
Security Incident and responses thereto, (iv) not disclose the existence of any Data Security Incident 
without the express written permission of Client except to the extent required by law, and (v) assist and 
reasonably cooperate with respect to (a) any independent forensic investigation, (b) any required or 
otherwise appropriate disclosure to affected entities, individuals or governmental authorities, (c) any 
other remedial measures reasonably requested or required under any applicable Law, and (d) any 
response to regulatory inquiries, litigation, or other similar actions.  

 
17. Governing Law 



 

Dewpoint | Confidential Information   
 10 

Master Services Agreement 2019 

 
This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the state of Michigan without regard to principles of 
choice or conflicts of law.   

 
18. Arbitration 

 
Any dispute arising out of or relating to this Agreement which cannot be resolved by the Parties shall be 
decided solely by a single arbitrator mutually agreed to by the Parties and conducted by the American 
Arbitration Association in accordance with its rules of Commercial Arbitration then in effect. The 
arbitrators’ award may be entered as a judgment of the court by any court having competent 
jurisdiction. 
 

19. Conflicts of Terms 
 
In the event of any conflict between the express terms of this Agreement and any SOW, the terms of 
this Agreement shall govern, except to the extent expressly stated otherwise in an SOW. 
 

20. Notices 
 
All notices, including notices of address changes, required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be in 
writing and shall be deemed to have been given when: 
 

(a) mailed by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, if within the 
United States, or 

(b) electronic notification which has adequate traceability and encryption capability, so long as the 
Parties agree upon the use of such medium or mode in advance; or  

(c) sent by overnight express courier service, charges prepaid, if within or outside the United States, 
to the receiving Party at its address set forth below (or such other address as the receiving Party 
may designate in accordance with this section): 
 

 
 If to Dewpoint: Dewpoint 
  300 S. Washington Square 
  Suite 200 
  Lansing, MI 48933 
  Attention: Joe Findlater  
 If to Client: City of Eaton Rapids 
  200 S. Main Street 
  Eaton Rapids, MI 48827 
  Attention:  Aaron Desentz 
 

21. Severability 
 
Each provision of this Agreement shall be considered severable and if, for any reason, any provision or 
provisions herein are determined to be invalid and contrary to any existing or future law, such invalidity 



 

Dewpoint | Confidential Information   
 11 

Master Services Agreement 2019 

shall not impair the operation of or affect those portions of this Agreement which are valid.  In the event 
any provision of this Agreement is held to be unenforceable, then the balance of the Agreement shall 
survive. 
 

22. Entire Agreement 
 
This Agreement and any SOWs, Documents, Exhibits, and/or Addenda hereto constitute the entire 
Agreement of the Parties and supersede all prior or contemporaneous oral or written communications, 
proposals and representations with respect to their subject matter, and this Agreement prevails over any 
conflicting or additional terms of any quote, order, acknowledgement, or similar communication between 
the Parties during the term of this Agreement, unless such additional terms are consented to by both 
parties in writing. In the event of any inconsistency or ambiguity between this Agreement and any other 
documents, the terms that are more favorable to Dewpoint shall govern.     
 

23. Survival 
 
Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement, all provisions of this Agreement which by their nature 
are intended to survive termination shall survive the termination of this Agreement, including but not 
limited to, Sections 4, 6, 7 8, 9 11, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 21, 22, and 24. 
 

24. Waiver 
 
No waiver of any breach of any term or provision of this Agreement shall be construed to be, nor shall be, 
a waiver of any other term or provision of this Agreement.  No waiver shall be binding unless in writing 
and signed by the Party waiving the breach. The failure of either Party to enforce any of the provisions of 
this Agreement, or to require any performance by the other Party of any of the provisions hereof, shall 
not be construed to be a waiver, or in any way to affect the validity of this Agreement or any part thereof 
or the right of such Party to thereafter strictly enforce each and every such provision.  
 

25. Counterparts 
 
This Agreement may be executed in the original or by facsimile or other electronic means in any number 
of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, and all of which together shall constitute one 
and the same instrument. 
 

26. Third Party Beneficiaries  
 

The Parties agree that: (a) this Agreement is for the benefit of the Parties to this Agreement and is not 
intended to confer any rights or benefits on any third party (including any employee of either party); and 
(b) there are no third-party beneficiaries to this Agreement or any specific term of this Agreement. 
 

27. Defined Terms  
 
“Client Data” shall mean all data and information pertaining to Client or its authorized users which is 
provided by Client in connection with this Agreement or any SOW which is owned by or licensed to 



 

Dewpoint | Confidential Information   
 12 

Master Services Agreement 2019 

Client, and to which Dewpoint or its agents have access in connection with the provision of the Services 
and/or Deliverables. 

 “Client Materials” means software, data and any other documents or materials provided by Client to 
enable or facilitate the provision of Services by Dewpoint pursuant hereto.  
 
“Data Security Incident” means i) an accidental or deliberate event that results in or constitutes an 
imminent threat of the unauthorized access, loss, disclosure, modification, disruption, or destruction of 
Client’s datum and/or ii) a breakdown of the data security protocols. 
 
 “Deliverables” means any tangible information, materials and/or any other items to be delivered 
physically, or documents, images or data files to be transmitted electronically by Dewpoint to Client, as 
provided in the applicable SOW, which items may include, without limitation, Software, Documentation, 
specifications, drawings, data compilations and reports. 
 
“Developed Software” shall mean any Software developed pursuant to this Agreement or any SOW for 
Client but excluding any third-party software. 

 “Documentation” means user manuals and other written materials related to Software, including 
without limitation functional and technical specifications and materials useful for design (e.g., logic 
manuals, flow charts, schematics and principles of operation) and a description of any technical 
environment necessary to operate such Software. 

“Expenses” means the cost of all actual and out-of-pocket itemized expenses incurred by Dewpoint in 
connection with Dewpoint’s performance of the Services (including without limitation for all reasonable 
travel and lodging expenses incurred by Dewpoint’s personnel in performing the Services). 
 
“Intellectual Property Rights” means all intellectual property rights of whatever form, now or hereafter 
available under any applicable laws, including, but not limited to, all patents, trade secrets, copyrights, 
trademarks and any applications therefor or registrations thereof. 
 
“Services” means those services provided by Dewpoint to the Client, as described in Statements of Work 
(“SOWs”), specifically detailing the work to be performed as mutually agreed and executed by both 
Dewpoint and Client. 
 
 “Software” means computer programs and Documentation, including, but not limited to, machine 
readable binary code (object code), human readable code (source code) and all optional software 
integrations or utilities, which may define the operating environment. 
 
“Standard Change Control Process” means the change control process defined in the Statement of 
Work 
 
“Transition Assistance Services” means the services provided by Dewpoint to assist Client in 
transitioning the Services from Dewpoint to the Client or new vendor selected by Client upon contract 
termination.  These services may be outside the scope of the current contract, and in such cases, Client 
will be charged time and material rates for such services. 



 

Dewpoint | Confidential Information   
 13 

Master Services Agreement 2019 

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto, through their duly authorized officers, have executed 

this Agreement as of the day and year first set forth below. 

 
Dewpoint, Inc.       Client: 
 
 
By:__________________________   By:__________________________ 
 Name:  Joe Findlater    Name: 
 Title:  Sr VP State, Local, and Education  Title: 

Date: 4/1/20    Date: _____________________ 
 
 

adesentz
Typewritten text
Aaron DesentzCity Manager, Eaton Rapids04/07/2020



AGREEMENT FOR RELEASE OF ALL CLAIMS

This Agreement for Release of All Claims (hereinafter "Agreement"), is entered into by

and between Susan MONTENEGRO (hereinafter "MONTENEGRO"), who resides at 700

Willow Springs Drive, Owosso, MI and the City of Eaton Rapids (hereinafter the "CITY"). This

Agreement is executed by and on behalf of MONTENEGRO, her heirs, personal representatives,

administrators and assigns, in favor of the City, its Council, departments, boards, subdivisions,

employees, attorneys, insurers, agents, officers, elected and appointed officials, successors and

assigns. MONTENEGRO and the CITY agree as follows:

WHEREAS, the CITY terminated MONTENEGRO's employment with the CITY at a

regular council meeting on April 25, 2022, effective immediately;

AND WHEREAS, the CITY and MONTENEGRO, without any admission of liability,

wish to amicably settle, compromise, dispose of ånd release claims, disputes, demands and

causes of action as specified in this Agreement;

AND WHEREAS, MONTENEGRO'S employment agreement provided for the payment

of severance contingent on the execution of a release of liability:

IT IS NOW, THEREFORE AGREED AS FOLLOWS:

1. In consideration for MONTENEGRO's signing of this Agreement and in final

settlement of any money claimed to be owed MONTENEGRO based on the employment

agreement entered into between the parties on December 6, 2021, the CITY hereby agrees to the

following:

a. To pay MONTENEGRO a gross total of fifty thousand five hundred fifty

($50,550.00) dollars in a lump sum payment, by a check made payable to

"SUSAN MONTENEGRO." The CITY will withhold any taxes required

by federal, state or local law from the above referenced sum. No other

deductions from pay, including retirement deductions, will be made from

the above referenced sum. Payment will be made within thirty (30) days

after MONTENEGRO has signed this Agreement, unless revoked as set

forth in Paragraph 14.

2. The parties acknowledge that the payment by the CITY referenced in Paragraph 1

are amounts which MONTENEGRO would not otherwise receive and represent real

consideration in exchange for this full and final release and waiver of all claims.

3. In consideration for the CITY's signing of this Agreement, and the consideration

referenced above, MONTENEGRO, for herself, her successors, representatives, heirs and

assigns, thereby releases and discharges the CITY, its past and present Council, departments,

boards, subdivisions, employees, attorneys, insurers, agents, officers, elected and appointed

officials, successors and assigns, from any and all suits, causes of action, complaints, charges,

grievances, obligations, demands, or claims of any kind, whether in law, equity, administrative

1



agency, or arbitration, either direct or indirect, known or unknown (hereinafter "CLAIMS"),which MONTENEGRO ever had or now has as of the date of this Agrccmcnt based on her
employment with and separation from employment with the CITY. This Agrecmcnt specifically
includes but is not limited to:

a. Any and all CLAIMS for wages or fringe benefits;

b. Any and all CLAIMS for wrongful discharge or breach of express or
implied contract, including but not limited to any CLAIMS for breach of
the employment agreement dated December 6, 2021; or the claim for the
payment of any money owed pursuant to that agreement.

c. Any and all CLAIMS of alleged employment discrimination in violation
of federal, state or local statute, ordinance, judicial precedent or executive
order, including but not limited to claims of discrimination on the basis of
age, race, color, religion, sex, national origin, veteran status, disability
and/or handicap, height or weight, as well as claims under Title VIl of the
Civil Rights Act as amended, 42 U.S.C. 2000e g! seq., the 1978 Pregnancy
Discrimination Act, 42 U.S.C. 2000 e, g! seq., the Age Discrimination in
Employment Act, 29 U.S.C. 621 g! seq., the Americans with Disabilities
Act, 42 U.S.C. 12101 g! seq., the Rehabilitation Act of 1972 as amended,
29 U.S.C. 701 g! seq., the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993, 29
U.S.C. 2601, g! sgq., the Elliott-Larsen Civil Rights Act, as amended,
MCL 37.2101 g! seq., the Persons with Disabilities Civil Rights Act, as
amended, 37.1101 g! s_gq., and any other applicable federal, state or local
law, rule or ordinance of any kind;

d. Any and all suits in tort, including but not limited to any claims for
misrepresentation, invasion of privacy, negligence, defamation, libel,
slander, interference with contract or prospective economic advantage,
intentional infliction of emotional distress, work-related injury or illness;

Any and all CLAIMS for commission, compensation or damages of any
kind;

f. Any and all CLAIMS under any federal or state statute relating to
employee benefits or pensions (except claims to any benefits, such as
pension, already vested);

g. Any and all CLAIMS for attorney fees and costs;

h. Any and all contractual CLAIMS, including claims or grievances on her
behalf made pursuant to a collective bargaining agreement;

2



i. Any and all CLAIMS arising out of the United States Constitution or the

State of Michigan Constitution, including, but not limited to, any and all

due process or equal protection claims; and

Any and all suits or administrative CLAIMS of any nature now pending in any

forum whatsoever.

4. MONTENEGRO further promises and agrees not to file a lawsuit based upon any

rights or claims released in this Agreement, and further agrees not to allow or authorize any
person or entity to file such lawsuit on her behalf against any released party. MONTENEGRO
further promises and agrees not to accept any monetary damages which arise out of, or in
connection with, any administrative claims which may be filed with, or pursued independently
by, any governmental agency against any released party.

5. It is further agreed that, as of April 25, 2022, MONTENEGRO shall no longer
possess, any duties or authority to act on behalf of the City, including contacting third parties on

behalf of the City. MONTENEGRO agrees to make herself reasonably available to assist the
City with any matters if contacted by City staff. MONTENEGRO also shall make herself
reasonably available to assist the City in defense of litigation against it or its officers and
employees.

6. MONTENEGRO and CITY expressly acknowledge and agree that this
Agreement is not to be construed as an admission of liability or unfair or unlawful action on the

part of CITY and that this Agreement is entered into simply in order to avoid the prospect of
litigation and/or administrative proceedings.

7. MONTENEGRO will not disparage the CITY or its Council, departments, boards,

subdivisions, employees, attorneys, insurers, agents, officers, elected and appointed officials,
successors and assigns, or otherwise take any action which could reasonably be expected to
adversely affect the reputation of the CITY or its Council, departments, boards, subdivisions,
employees, attorneys, insurers, agents, officers, elected and appointed officials, successors and

assigns. Similarly, the CITY will not disparage MONTENEGRO or MONTENEGRO's
performance or otherwise take any action which could reasonably be expected to adversely affect

MONTENEGRO's personal or professional reputation. MONTENEGRO acknowledges that the

only persons whose statements may be attributed to the CITY for purposes of this Agreement,

other than her own, shall be the members of the Council. For purposes of this Section,
"disparage" shall mean any negative statement, whether written or oral.

8. In further consideration for the CITY's signing of this Agreement,

MONTENEGRO agrees not to apply for employment at any time in the future with the City, its

departments, boards, subdivisions, agents, successors or assigns in whatever capacity.

9. MONTENEGRO agrees to return all property, computer equipment, codes,

passwords, data and other physical and/or intellectual property belonging to the City.

3



10. The parties understand that this Agreement covers all of the CLAIMS and

potential CLAIMS mentioned above, which arose on or before the date of execution of this

Agreement, including pre-and post-employment causes of action, whether known or unknown,

suspected or unsuspected, matured or unmatured, and that this constitutes an essential term of

this Agreement.

11. It is further understood and acknowledged by the parties that the terms of this

Agreement are contractual and are not a mere recital and that MONTENEGRO does not rely on

any agreements, understandings, or representations made by the CITY, its agents, officers,

employees, or representatives, except as expressly stated in this Agreement. This Agreement

may not be amended, revoked, waived, changed or modified, except by a written agreement

executed by both parties.

12. This Agreement shall be construed and governed by the laws of the State of
Michigan. The parties herein agree that any and all disputes, claims, litigation, lawsuits, or

causes of action arising out of this agreement shall be exclusively litigated in the courts for Eaton

County, Michigan.

13. Each provision of this Agreement is intended to be severable. If any term or
provision is held to be invalid, or is deemed unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction
for any reason whatsoever, such ruling shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the
Agreement.

14. The parties acknowledge that MONTENEGRO has been provided twenty-one
(21) days to consider this Separation Agreement and Release of All Claims and has been advised

of the right to consult with an attorney regarding the terms of this Separation Agreement and
Release of All Claims and her rights under the state and federal statutes and common law. To
formalize said acknowledgment, MONTENEGRO has executed "Exhibit A" attached to this
Agreement. MONTENEGRO further acknowledges that, should she determine to execute this
Agreement prior to the expiration of the twenty-one (21) day review period, she shall execute
Exhibit "B"; waiving said twenty-one (21) day review period. The parties also acknowledge that

before signing this Agreement, they read the same consisting of 5 pages; that they fully
understand its terms, content, and effect; that they have had the opportunity to receive the benefit

of advice from an attorney of their choosing; and that they have relied fully and completely on
their own judgment and/or on the advice of their attorneys in executing this Separation
Agreement and Release of All Claims. Finally, the parties acknowledge that MONTENEGRO
may revoke this Separation Agreement and Release of All Claims with regard to age
discrimination in employment claims only by providing written notice of such revocation to the

CITY before the end of seven (7) days following the execution of this Agreement.

The parties have signed this Separation Agreement and Release of All Claims on the
dates set forth under their legal signatures.

By signing below, I acknowledge that I have read all five (5) pages of this Agreement
and Exhibits A and B, and fully understand its contents, terms and effect. I have been advised to

talk to a lawyer before signing this Agreement. By signing below, I am stating that I have either

4



talked to a lawyer about this Agreement, or that I wish to go ahead on my own without the
advice of a lawyer. I am agreeing to the terms and conditions of this Agreement voluntarily and

of my own free will.

The parties understand that this Agreement is subject to, and contingent upon, approval
by the City's City Council.

Dated:

SUSAN MONT NEGRO

The CITY agrees to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

Dated:

Dated:

PAMELA COLESTOCK

Its: MAYOR

LAURA BOOMER

Its: CLERK

As to form only:

Dated:

CULLEN HARKNESS

Its: CITY ATTORNEY

5



EXHIBIT "A"

RECEIPT OF SEPARATION AGREEMENT

I acknowledge that I received today a copy of the Separation Agreement and Release of

All Claims. I have been advised of the following:

1. I have twenty-one (21) days to consider this Agreement.

2. I have the opportunity to discuss with the CITY any questions or concerns I may

have over the terms or language of the Agreement.

3. I have been advised that I should see an attorney of my choosing to review the

Agreement.

4. I should not sign the Agreement unless I fully understand its terms and enter into

the Agreement of my own free will.

5. I have seven (7) days after signing the Agreement to revoke the Agreement with
regard to age discrimination in employment claims only by providing written notice of such
revocation to the CITY.

6. No other promises have been made to me beyond the terms of the Separation
Agreement and Release of All Claims.

USAN MONT GRO

Dated:

6



EXHIBIT B

WAIVER OF TWENTY-ONE DAY REVIEW PERIOD

I acknowledge that I was provided with a copy of the Separation Agreement and Release
of All Claims on 2022. I have had an opportunity to review the
Agreement, have been afforded the opportunity to have it reviewed by an attorney of my
choosing, and have made the decision to execute the Agreement prior to the expiration of the
twenty-one (21) day review period. Therefore, I have executed the Separation Agreement today,
and I understand that I have seven (7) days from today to revoke the Agreement with regard to
age discrimination in employment claims only by providing written notice of such revocation to
the CITY.

USAN MONTE GRO

Dated: 5

7



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TEMPORARY EASEMENT FOR GARDENING PURPOSES 

 
The City of Eaton Rapids, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, located at 200 South Main 

Street, Eaton Rapids, MI 48827 (Grantor), hereby grants to Robin Webb, a single woman, whose 
address is 502 South Main Street, Eaton Rapids, MI 48827 (Grantee), rights of a temporary 
easement over the following described premises: 
  

The 20 feet wide Alley running North and South 330 feet between King Street on the 
North Side and Broad Street on the South side, with Lots 1, 4, 5, 8 & 9 on the East side, and Lots 
2, 3, 6, 7, & 10 on the West side, Block 15, Original Plat, City of Eaton Rapids, Eaton County, 
Michigan. Subject to all existing easements and restrictions of record, if any.  

 
 Commonly known as: The 20’ by 330’ Alley between King Street and Broad Street. 
 
 Parcel Number: N/A 
  
 Legal description: The Southerly 72 feet of the Northerly 198 feet of the 20 feet wide 
Alley running North and South 330 feet between King Street on the North side and Broad Street 
on the South side, with Lots 1, 4, 5, 8 & 9 on the East side, and Lots 2, 3, 6, 7 & 10 on the West 
side, within Block 15, Original Plat, City of Eaton Rapids, Eaton County, Michigan. Subject to 
all existing easements and restrictions of record, if any.  
 
This temporary easement is being granted in exchange for the payment of one ($1.00) dollar, 
receipt of which is hereby acknowledged. 
 

Retention of Utility Rights: This Temporary Easement for Gardening Purposes is being granted 
to Grantee under the condition that Grantor retains all rights for the purposes of constructing, 
repairing, substitution, removing, enlarging, replacing, installing, maintaining, altering, operating 
or improving any form of Utilities, in, into, upon, over, across, and under the above-described 
land, and also the option to re-open the Alley in the sole and exclusive discretion of the Grantor.  
 
Other Rights Reserved: This Temporary Easement for Gardening Purposes is also being 
granted on the condition that in the event that Grantor should desire to re-open the Alley, or have 
the need to construct, repair, substitute, etc., within said Alley, Grantor retains any and all rights 
and permission to enter onto said Property at all times for any of the purposes described above.  
 



2 

 

Temporary Easement: This Temporary Easement for Gardening Purposes is limited to the 
current owner of 502 South Main Street, Robin Webb, and SHALL NOT be perpetual and 
binding upon any subsequent successors, assigns, grantees, devisees, or donees of either party, 
and SHALL NOT run with the land. 
 
Termination of Easement: This Easement may be terminated at any time by Grantor and in 
Grantor’s sole and exclusive discretion upon written notice to the Grantee. Said easement shall 
automatically terminate ten (10) years from the date of execution of this easement. 
 
Limitation on Use: This easement is being granted to the Grantee for the sole and exclusive 
purposes of gardening. As used in this easement, gardening shall be defined as the growing and 
cultivating of plants as part of horticulture, and specifically limited to the growing of: flowers, 
foliage, root vegetables, leaf vegetables, fruits, and herbs. Nothing in this temporary easement 
shall be construed as an authorization for Grantee to grow Marihuana or hemp as defined by the 
laws of the State of Michigan, or any derivatives related thereto.  
 
Interpretation: This easement shall be interpreted under the laws of the State of Michigan. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands this __th day of _____________, 
2022. 
 
 
 
WITNESSES:      GRANTOR: 
 
 
____________________________   ________________________________ 
       Pamela Colestock, Mayor 
 
 
____________________________   ________________________________ 
       Laura Boomer, Clerk 
 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN )  
COUNTY OF EATON ) 
 
 The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this __th day of June, 2022 by 
Pamela Colestock, Mayor and Laura Boomer, Clerk, City of Eaton Rapids.  
 
 
 
     /s/__________________________________ 

___________________, 
Notary public, State of Michigan, County of ________. 
My commission expires ______________ 



3 

 

 

 

Prepared by:       When recorded return to: 

 
Cullen C. Harkness (P71612)     Laura Boomer, Clerk 
Eaton Rapids City Attorney     City of Eaton Rapids 
4121 Okemos Road, Suite 17     200 South Main Street 
Okemos, MI 48864      Eaton Rapids, MI 48827 
 



 

 

M E E T I N G  D A T E :  0 6 / 1 4 / 2 0 2 2  D E P A R T M E N T  
To: Mayor and City Council  ☒Work Session 

From: Rob Pierce ☒Regular Meeting 

Submitted: 5/31/2022  

Subject: RFID system for City Hall entry 

SUMMARY 

 

Received three quotes to implement RFID card reading system to allow access to  
City Hall by using a RFID card system. Cards can be customized for each individual to limit times and areas of 
access. Users can be added or removed in minutes. A key option will remain at each door in the event of 
emergencies, Loss of power or malfunction of the system. Keys will be limited to select few. This upgrade will 
allow immediate changes to be made to the system and reduce exposure and the need for a locksmith. 
 
  

 
 
 

Budget 

This purchase was not in the original budget. Proposal to use ARPA funds. 
 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION 

  

A motion to approve Proposal from Johnson Controls for $13,914.26 
 

LIST OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

 

3 Quotes attached to Packet 

 

 

 



City Hall Access Control Quote #001108 v1

Advanced Satellite Communications

Prepared by:Prepared For:

City of Eaton Rapids

P: (517) 749-2917
E: RPierce@cityofeatonrapids.com

P: 7347931423
E: abarber@advancedsat.com

Adam Barber
12137 Merriman Road
Livonia, MI 48150

Rob  Pierce
200 S. Main St.
Eaton Rapids , MI 48827

Date Issued:

05.23.2022

Expires:

06.15.2022

Scope of Work

System Purpose
Add Access control to selected doors in City Hall that allow authorized users to enter locked doors using a 
Key Fob

Access Control System - ProDataKey
Database/Software 

User information, Cards, and Schedules are entered by system administrators and stored in the cloud.  

Data such as door access history and permissions are accessed through a Web Portal.  Administrators can 

make system changes and momentarily unlock doors via mobile app for iPhone or Android.  The 

subscription for this service is quoted on a per door basis.     

Control Panels  

The head-end of the Access System powers the Readers to be installed on doors being controlled by the 

system.  Each panel can accommodate 8 readers and multiple panels can be tied together to expand the 

system.  

Card Readers 

Card Readers have 26-bit encryption and will be installed on the doors listed on the attached table.   

Electric Locking Hardware 

Electronic Locking mechanisms are required to control access to doors.  These items include electric 

strikes, electric mortise locks, Crash bars or Mag-locks. Retrofitting doors with electric strikes often requires 

handlesets and door closers to be installed as well.  All electric door hardware is to be installed by certified 

locksmith contracted by ASC.  A.S.C. will install a power supply to run the hardware, system requirements 

Page: 1 of 5Quote #001108 v1



Scope of Work

are 12VDC power for each lock. 

User Credentials 

100 Access Key Fobs will be provided to issue to users on the system.  Additional cards or Fobs can be 

purchased as needed through A.S.C. 

Cabling 

Each Access controlled door will have 3 cables (1 Reader, 1 Lock, 1 Door Contact) run from the Head-End 

Location to the door.  At the door, cables will need to be fished down door frames and walls.  Exposed 

cable will be protected in conduit or wire-mold depending on application to building code.  

A.S.C. Technician Scope of Work

 Identify Door, Panel, and Network Locations.   Verify Power, Cable Runs, & Device Locations

 Run Cables from Head-End to Doors Listed

 Install Field Devices a Door List

 Install Head-End Equipment. Control Panel, Power Supply, & Cloud Node

 Activate and Program PDK.io Account

 Connect and Test Electric Door Strike

 Connect Readers to Control Panel and Program Reader Settings

 Set-up Database, Door Schedules, & System Admins

 Train System admins on software navigation, two-factor authentication settings, managing the user 

database, issuing card credentials, setting schedules, & mobile app functions (Remote Training 

sessions are available by request) 

 Test and inspect System with Network Admins

Page: 2 of 5Quote #001108 v1



Customer's Responsibilities

 Wall Space for mounting Access Panels & Power Supply 
 120VAC Power at Panel Location
 Internet Connection
 Clear Paths for Wire Runs
 Doors being added to access control must be in good working order 
 Computers with internet connection required for accessing system software

Page: 3 of 5Quote #001108 v1



System Devices

Product Description Qty

Cloud Node 1

8-Door Ethernet Controller 1

POWER SUPPLY 6A @ 12/24VDC 1

Transformer (16.5VAC 40VA,Plug-In Type, ) 1

Relay (12-24VDC, Low Current, 2A Contact, DPDT) 6

Battery (12volt, 4AH, SLA) 1

Battery (12V, 7Ah) 2

Reader (Mullion or Single Gang) 6

Contact (Surface Mount Contact, Brown) 6

18/4 (STR, BC,  Plenum, White) 3000

22/6C (STR BC Shield CL3P White, Reel) Plenium 3000

22/4C (STR, BC, CL3P, White) 3000

CAT6 (Plenum Solid Yellow) 100

Junction Box (white, Single, raceway) 6

Raceway Duct (3/4 inch, 2 Pack, White) 6

Raceway (3/4 inch Combo Pack White) 6

Install Hardware/Wire Fittings 1

Electric Door Strikes/Locking Hardware 6

Key Fob (HID,26bit) 100

Subtotal: $10,779.43

Installation Services

Product Description Qty

Installation & Programming 1

Subtotal: $5,224.00

Recurring Services

Description Recurring Qty Ext. Recurring

Prodata Key Cloud
Hosted Access

Prodata Key Cloud Hosted Access $12.00 6 $72.00

Monthly Subtotal: $72.00

Quote Summary Amount

System Devices $10,779.43

Installation Services $5,224.00

Subtotal: $16,003.43

Shipping: $50.00

Total: $16,053.43

Page: 4 of 5Quote #001108 v1



Monthly Expenses Summary Amount

Recurring Services $72.00

Monthly Total: $72.00

Customer understands that any additional fees that may be incurred to comply with all applicable building codes, zoning ordinances or any other permits needed
for installation is their responsibility. Further, reference to Plug and Play is defined herein as utilization of pre-existing cable distribution system for entire property,
as is. Delays or distractions caused by customer during installation or service may be billed additionally upon written order to customer. Any alteration or deviation
from above quoted specifications involving extra cost will be executed only upon written orders and will become an extra charge over and above this quotation.
This is the entire agreement, and no additional services or promise of performance is implied that is not contained herein.  Acceptance of quotation - all terms and
conditions as written are a part hereof and are binding upon the parties hereto. A.S.C. retains the right to substitute parts of equal or better value to complete a
functional system. Upon clients written approval A.S.C. may access clients system(s) for virtual maintenance, trouble shooting and reporting functions. A.S.C. may
refer to clients name in various marketing materials unless prohibited by client. A.S.C. shall have no liability for any personal injury, property damage or other loss
based on any claim at all including a claim the product failed to perform.  A.S.C. will bill after functional completion of the job and expect payment due within the
terms stated on this proposal.The Company reserves the right to send the account to a third party for collection. It is understood and agreed that The Company
may do so for the entire amount remaining on the contract plus any collection costs incurred in the process.  Note: Finance charges of 1.5% per month added to
past due invoices. All products shown herein remain the property of A.S.C. until paid in full.  Prices contained in this quotation shall be considered firm for a period
of (30) days from the date of quotation unless otherwise stated herein. A.S.C. will charge a restocking fee of 20% on all returned or cancelled merchandise. All
purchases placed on a credit card for orders over $2,000. may incur a 2.5% service charge.  ATTORNEYS' FEES. In the event of any litigation or arbitration
between the parties with respect to this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs of litigation, as the court
or tribunal may determine.

Acceptance

Advanced Satellite Communications City of Eaton Rapids

Adam Barber Rob  Pierce

Signature / Name Signature / Name Initials

05/23/2022

Date Date

Page: 5 of 5Quote #001108 v1



Pdk io provides the most powerful and 
streamlined access control platform on 
the market. Experience full configuration and 
management from any internet-connected device. Manage users, create 
groups, open and close doors, set system rules, send SMS & email alerts, instantly allow 
or revoke facility access, and more. All in a single App. Backed by the industry's highest 
security standards, pdk io services are hosted in highly secure and redundant cloud 
servers.  For added security, two-factor authentication for users can be enabled before 
any account changes take place. 

prodatakey.com Anywhere. Anytime. Any Device.

Anywhere. Anytime. Any Device.

Automatic Updates
Always be up-to-date with the latest 
software and features. Pdk io’s future-proof 
design incorporates new technology and 
eliminates the need for manually updates. 

Email and Text Alerts
Create email or SMS notifications to alert 
individuals of specific occurances within the 
system such as: door prop alarms, unlock 
notifications, and lockdown initiations.

Strengthened Security
As new security threats arise, you’ll enjoy 
comfort knowing pdk proactively and 
automatically prevents network hacking 
with the highest level of up-to-date security.

Advanced Integrations
Experience seamless total security control 
with advanced integrations from security 
cameras, intercom entry panels, wireless 
locksets, HR platforms, and more.

Access control
has never been
this simple Defining the future of access control

Intuitive Mobile and Web Interface
Customizable Rules Engine
Visually Appealing Hardware 

Single App Management
With pdk io, administrators can manage 
users, assign physical and mobile credentials, 
create access rules, open and close doors, and 
more. All from one single app.

Manage Multiple Locations
Users are able to manage databases for 
multiple locations from only one login. Pdk 
io features anytime access to all of your 
systems from any web enabled device.



Access Controlled Door List 

No. Door Panel/MDF Int./Ext. Reader Type Intercom  Cable Lock Type Door 
Accessories 

1 Front Door  ACU1 Exterior 
Proximity – 
Surface Mount 

None 
22/6, 
18/4, 
22/4 

Rim Strike Door Contact 

2 Vestibule to City Hall Lobby ACU1 Interior  
Proximity – 
Surface Mount 

None  
22/6, 
18/4, 
22/4 

Rim Strike Door Contact 

3 Vestibule to City Council  ACU1 Interior  
Proximity – 
Surface Mount 

None  
22/6, 
18/4, 
22/4 

Rim Strike Door Contact 

4 Side Door  ACU1 Exterior  
Proximity – 
Surface Mount  

None  
22/6, 
18/4, 
22/4 

Rim Strike Door Contact 

5 Rear Entry Door  ACU1  Exterior  
Proximity – 
Surface Mount  

None  
22/6, 
18/4, 
22/4 

Rim Strike Door Contact 

6 Rear City Hall Entry  ACU Interior  
Proximity – 
Surface Mount  

None  
22/6, 
18/4, 
22/4 

Rim Strike Door Contact 

7 

8 

City of Eaton Rapids 

200 S Main St 

Eaton Rapids, MI 48827 





Card Reader Types 

8-Reader Control Panel 

Power Supply 

Cloud Node 

Door Accessories 

Internet 

Internet 

Electric Locking Mechanism 



INVOICE  Sales Receipt  QUOTE
5/10/2022

Printed: 5/10/2022 1:57:11 PM 
Store:  1

Associate:  CMD
Cashier:  CMD

Page   1

REPRINTED

BUILDERS' HARDWARE CO.
1009 S. W ASHINGTON AVE.

LANSING, MI 48910
517-332-4115 -  contact.bhco@gmail.com

Remit Payment To:
PO Box 1328, East Lansing, MI 48826

Vendor Part Number Description Qty Unit Price Ext Price
BHCO INSTALL W IRING INSTALL W IRING FOR ELEC DEVICES 6 $250.00 $1,500.00
BHCO INSTALL ELEC STRIKE INSTALL ELEC STRIKE 6 $80.00 $480.00
BHCO INSTALL CTE/POW ER SUPPLY BHCO INSTALL CTE/POW ER SUPPLY 9 $50.00 $450.00
BHCO INSTALL - LABOR REMOVE TRIM AND REINSTALL 3 $75.00 $225.00
BHCO INSTALL READER/KEYPAD BHCO INSTALL READER/KEYPAD 6 $50.00 $300.00
SHOP SUPPLIES SHOP SUPPLIES 1 $400.00 $400.00

SCE CTE-MTB11/15-485 ENGAGE CONTROLLER 6 $1,254.00 $7,524.00
SCE MT20W CREDENTIAL READER 1 $444.99 $444.99
SCE *PS904-8F POW ER SUPPLY AND RELAY BOARD 3 $509.60 $1,528.80
VON 6300-US32D FSE 12/24VDC RIM EXIT ELECTRIC STK 6 $661.75 $3,970.52
SCE 9651T SCHLAGE THIN KEYFOB 100 $6.38 $637.50

*W IRE MOLD W IRE MOLD 6 $40.00 $240.00
*SPACER BLOCKS SPACER BLOCKS 2 $40.00 $80.00
PROG INITIAL PROGRAMMING - PER CTE 6 $20.00 $120.00
PROG FOB PROGAMMING AND SITE SETUP 100 $10.00 $1,000.00
TRAINING TRAINING AND TECH SUPPORT 1 $250.00 $250.00

Subtotal: $19,150.81
Local Sales Tax 0 % Tax: + $0.00

RECEIPT TOTAL: $19,150.81

CITY OF EATON RAPIDS CITY HALL
COSTS NOT INCLUDED:

1. ELECTRICIAN TO RUN 120 POWER TO EACH POWER SUPPLY. MAX 3AMPS REQUIRED EACH.
2. DOOR TRIM MAY NEED TOUCH UP REPAIRS AFTER INSTALLATION - COST NOT INCLUDED

FOR CARPENTRY WORK.
3. OPTIONAL: BATTERY BACKUP KITS AT $300 PER POWER SUPPLY.

Thanks for shopping with us!  Visit our website www.BuildersHardwareMI.com
Friendly reminder - we can order that perfect item for you.  However, all special order items are not returnable.

Spread the word - Like us on Facebook!   www.Facebook.com/BuildersHardwareCo

HELD

PLEASE NOTE:  PRICES GOOD UNTIL 6/10/2022.  SUPPLIER PRICES INCREASES 
HAVE ALREADY BEEN ANNOUNCED FOR MID JUNE 2022.



 

 
 

 
 

© 2021 Johnson Controls – All Rights Reserved.  Johnson Controls, the Johnson Controls logo are 
service/trademarks of Johnson Controls.  All other product names and/or company names used herein may be 
protected as trademarks of their respective owners.  

JOHNSON CONTROLS CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY BUSINESS INFORMATION 
 

 
 
 
 

Proposal for 

City of Eaton Rapids 
New (6) Reader Brivo Access Control Installation 

200 S Main St 

Eaton Rapids, MI  48827 

05/27/2022 

 
 
 
 

This Johnson Controls Security Solutions LLC Proposal (the “Proposal”) contains Johnson 
Controls proprietary and business confidential information and may not be shared with third 
parties without the prior written consent of Johnson Controls. Johnson Controls’ provision of the 
equipment, systems, and/or services described in this Proposal is expressly conditioned upon 
Company’s acceptance of the terms and conditions of the standard Johnson Controls Security 
Solutions “AGREEMENT” COMMERCIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS. The system design 
and specified equipment are subject to final approval by your local fire department or other 
authority having jurisdiction. This Proposal is valid for a period of sixty (60) days from the above 
date and any deletions or additions to this Proposal may result in changes to the pricing and/or 
terms and conditions. 

 
 

Inquiries regarding this proposal may be directed to: 
 

Eric Nitschman 
Johnson Controls Security Solutions  
Cell Phone #: 517-249-9330 
Email: eric.nitschman@jci.com 

 



          

 

City of Eaton Rapids 
200 S Main St 

Eaton Rapids, MI  48827 
Estimate Name: City of Eaton Rapids New Brivo Access 

Installation 
 
 

JOHNSON CONTROLS SECURITY SOLUTIONS CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY BUSINESS 
INFORMATION 

 
© JOHNSON CONTROLS 2021.  ALL RIGHTS RESERVED 

  
  

DATE 05/27/2022 
 
Dear Robert Pierce: 
 
Thank you for allowing Johnson Controls Security Solutions LLC (Johnson Controls) the 
opportunity to provide City of Eaton Rapids with our proposal for City of Eaton Rapids New 
Brivo Access Installation. 
 
As an industry leader, Johnson Controls’ desire is to bring experience, industry insight and 
value to our customers by providing solutions that deliver lasting results while help keeping risk 
to a minimum.  Your business is our business and helping to reduce your losses while 
improving operations means Johnson Controls is consistently evaluating your issues and 
needs.   
 
Johnson Controls provides integrated security solutions to businesses like yours throughout 
the world.  In North America, Johnson Controls maintains over 200 full-service brick and mortar 
offices, staffed by more than 10,000 company-trained employees, including over 3,700 service 
personnel. With unparalleled presence across the U.S., Johnson Controls service and 
installation teams are specially trained and focused on our technology offerings.   
 
We are proud of our history, financial strength and depth and breadth of services we offer and 
I look forward to discussing our proposal with you and showing you why Johnson Controls is 
the premier leader in the electronic security industry. 
 
I offer you my personal commitment to help ensure Johnson Controls meets your business 
needs. 
 
Sincerely,  
 
Eric Nitschman 
Commercial Business Solutions 

 
License Information: AL 2016/17-1498, 1499, 1500, 1501, 1502, A-0244, The Security Industry is governed by the rules and regulations of the 
Alabama Electronic Security Board of Licensure.  If you would like information on these rules and regulations or would like to register a complaint you 
can contact the Board at:  AESBL 7956 Vaughn Rd., Montgomery 36116, (334) 264-9388 Fax:  334-264-9332 AK 125516; 1058473, 5430 Fairbanks 
Street, Suite 7 Anchorage, AK 99507 AR 0000199, 0030740118 Regulated by Arkansas Bd. of Private Investigators & Private Security Agencies, #1 
State Police Plaza Dr., Little Rock 72209, (501) 618-8600 AZ ROC281489, 18267-0 CA 977249; alarm company operators are licensed and 
regulated by the Bureau of Security & Investigative Services, Dept. of Consumer Affairs, Sacramento, CA 95814 DC  ECS1327 FL EF20000890, 
EF20000341,EF0000478 GA LVA002833, LVA205386, LVU004635 HI CT-32427 ID PWC-C-12256-A-4, RCE-33602, EC012834 IL 127001526, 
128000247, 128000246, 128000243 LA 24889, F523, F489 MA 401-C,  MI 3601206912, A-0352, A-0170, 3602206914, A-0638, 3602206913, 

A-1058, A-1199 Whitcomb Avenue Madison Heights, MI 48071;  MN TS651063 MS 15024088, 19530-SC NC 846-CSA, 

28510-SP-FA/LV, 19385-SP-FA/LV, 27353-SP-FA/LV, 19718-SP-FA/LV, 24191-SP-FA/LV, 22850-SP-FA/LV 101 Industrial Drive, Ste 104 Raleigh, 
NC 27069, (919) 788-5320 NJ 34BF00050200, P00451, 607013 NM 375283  NV 0077542, F470, F469, NY 12000327404, Licensed by NYS Dept. 
of State  OH E16782, 50-18-1052, 50-25-1050, 50-48-1032, 50-57-1119, 53-31-1582 OK AC-67  OR  CLE-322, 197010, AC-67  PA Pennsylvania 
Home Improvement Contractor Registration Number; PA010083 RI 18004, AF-09170 TN ACC1704, ACC1705, ACC1707, ACC1708, ACC1709, 
ACC710, ACC1711 TX B00536, 4200 Buckingham Road Ste 150, Ft. Worth, TX 76115 – Dept of Public Safety, Private Security 5805 N. Lamar Blvd, 
Austin 78752, ACR-1460 UT 8390557-6501 VA  11-7587, 11-7575, 11-7591, 11-7573, 11-7589, 11-7578, 2705147765 WA JOHNSCS837N4, 

19625 62nd Ave South, Ste C112 Kent, WA 98032 WV 050291.   
See a comprehensive list of licenses on http://www.johnsoncontrols.com.  California Customers Only: Upon completion of the installation of the 
alarm system, the alarm company shall thoroughly instruct the purchaser in the proper use of the alarm system. Failure by the licensee, without legal 
excuse, to substantially commence work within 20 days from the approximate date specified in the agreement when the work will begin is a violation 
of the Alarm Company Act.  
 

 

http://www.johnsoncontrols.com/


          

 

City of Eaton Rapids 
200 S Main St 

Eaton Rapids, MI  48827 
Estimate Name: City of Eaton Rapids New Brivo Access 

Installation 
 
 

JOHNSON CONTROLS SECURITY SOLUTIONS CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY BUSINESS 
INFORMATION 

 
© JOHNSON CONTROLS 2021.  ALL RIGHTS RESERVED 

  
  

        

 
 
 
 
PAYMENT OPTIONS 

 
 
Outright Sale Option 
Provides your business with ownership of the electronic security equipment upon purchase. 
 

Installation Investment Package:     $13,914.26  
Total Monthly Payment Including Preferred Services:  $ 42.00/month 

 
 

 
  

 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
  



          

 

City of Eaton Rapids 
200 S Main St 

Eaton Rapids, MI  48827 
Estimate Name: City of Eaton Rapids New Brivo Access 

Installation 
 
 

JOHNSON CONTROLS SECURITY SOLUTIONS CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY BUSINESS 
INFORMATION 

 
© JOHNSON CONTROLS 2021.  ALL RIGHTS RESERVED 

  
  

SCOPE OF WORK 

 
This proposal presented by Johnson Controls is being provided at the request of City of Eaton 
Rapids to successfully meet the specifications of the City of Eaton Rapids New Brivo Access 
Installation Project at the 200 S Main St, Eaton Rapids, MI 48827 location. 
 

 
 
We propose to install a Access system which will consist of the following: 
 

 

1.0 Contact Information: 
 

Robert Pierce 
Public Works & Utilities Director  
517-525-3889 
rpierce@cityofeatonrapids.com  

2.0 System Operation: 
 

New Brivo 6 Reader Access System Installation 
 
New Equipment: 
1-Main access board for 2 readers 
   Located in network room 
2-Sub boards for 2 readers each 
   Located in network room  
1-Power supply for locking hardware  
   Located in network room 
1-Reader & Door strike 
   Located at front entry door 
1-Reader & Door strike 
   Located at City Hall front entry door 
1-Reader & Door strike 
   Located at City Hall back entry door 
1-Reader & Door strike 
   Located at City Hall side entry door 
1-Reader & Door strike 
   Located at City Consul front entry door to second floor 
1-Reader & Door strike 
   Located at Building back entry door 
*Price includes Labor, Wire, Programming, Training & Testing 
  

3.0 Programming Info: 
 

*All programming to be done by Johnson Controls technician 
*Program Brivo access system for cloud base  

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



          

 

City of Eaton Rapids 
200 S Main St 

Eaton Rapids, MI  48827 
Estimate Name: City of Eaton Rapids New Brivo Access 

Installation 
 
 

JOHNSON CONTROLS SECURITY SOLUTIONS CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY BUSINESS 
INFORMATION 

 
© JOHNSON CONTROLS 2021.  ALL RIGHTS RESERVED 

  
  

 
 
 

4.0 Site Conditions: 
 

8ft drop ceiling in office area 
Brick building  

  

5.0 Customer Expectations: 
 

All work to be done during normal working hours M-F  

6.0 Training Expectations: 
 

*All training to be done by Johnson Control technician 
*Train customer on the operations of the new Brivo access system 
*Train customer on groups, schedules & adding-deleting cards 

  

7.0 Customer Responsibilities / Tyco 
Exclusions: 

 

*Customer to provide a secure location for access panel installation 
*Customer to provice 100V outlets for access panel power 
*Customer to provide network connection for Brivo access panels 
  to connect to the Web for cloud base storage 

 
 

 



          

 

City of Eaton Rapids 
200 S Main St 

Eaton Rapids, MI  48827 
Estimate Name: City of Eaton Rapids New Brivo Access 

Installation 
 
 

JOHNSON CONTROLS SECURITY SOLUTIONS CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY BUSINESS 
INFORMATION 

 
© JOHNSON CONTROLS 2021.  ALL RIGHTS RESERVED 

  
  

 
BILL OF MATERIALS 
 
City of Eaton Rapids New Brivo Access Installation System 
 

   
QTY PRODUCT CODE DESCRIPTION LOCATION 

1 
Profile Codes Access 
Control Configurator                                          

Profile Codes    

1 
46                                          Hosted Access Service 

PROVIDED 
   

1 Regular Labor                                          Regular Labor    

1 Labor Adjustments                                          Labor Adjustments    

1 

B-ACS6100R-E                                          BRIVO ACS6100 REGULAR 
PANEL (ACCOMMODATES 
TWO (2) ACS6100 
EXPANSION BO 

   

2 
B-ACS6100-DB                                          TWO READER EXPANSION 

BOARD WITH OSDP. [CAN BE 
USED TO REPLACE ACS6000 

   

1 

AL400ULX                                          Power Supply / Charger- 
12VDC @ 4 Amp or 24VDC @ 
3 Amp. UL/CUL Listed. Burg 
(UL603) Fire (UL 1481) A 

   

400 
740044A                                          18/2c, STR, Shielded, CMP, 

Plenum, Green, 1000' Box 
   

400 
710548EA                                          CAT 5e 24/4pr, SOL, 

Unshielded, CMR, 
Non-Plenum, Gray, 500' Box 

   

6 
B-BSPMF-B                                          Mullion mount tri-technology 

reader 
   

6 Door Strikes                                     Locksmith Locking Hardware    

100 
3586-3M                                          3MILLID ISO COMPOSITE 

PROXIMITY CARD 
   

 

 
 


	06.13.22 RM Agenda.pdf (p.1-2)
	Minutes for Approval.pdf (p.3-5)
	05.23.22 Work Session.pdf (p.1)
	05.23.22 Regular Meeting.pdf (p.2-3)

	Payables.pdf (p.6-17)
	DWSRF Public Hearing Packet.pdf (p.18-24)
	DWSRF Public Hearing.pdf (p.1-5)
	Council cover sheet for DWSRF.pdf (p.1)
	ER Presentation Info.pdf (p.2-5)

	2022-06 DWSRF Project Plan.pdf (p.6-7)

	2022-2023 Budget Adoption Packet.pdf (p.25-28)
	2022-07 Budget Resolution.pdf (p.1-2)
	2021-22 budget.pdf (p.3-4)

	2022-08 Deficit Elimination Plan.pdf (p.29-31)
	Special Event Application - Sharing Grace.pdf (p.32-38)
	Lot Splits Request Packet.pdf (p.39-43)
	Council sheet, Preliminary Subdivision - Nolan, land divisions.pdf (p.1)
	05.02.22 Minutes.pdf (p.2-3)
	Chester St. parcels.pdf (p.4)
	Chester St. land division.pdf (p.5)

	Police Vehicle Financing Packet.pdf (p.44-46)
	Agenda Request 05.05.2022 Ford Vehicle Financing.pdf (p.1)
	Ford Financing Quote.pdf (p.2-3)

	IT Services Contract Packet.pdf (p.47-97)
	Agenda Item 06.03.2022 Dewpoint Contract Renewal.pdf (p.1)
	ERSOW signed.pdf (p.2-38)
	City of Eaton Rapids MSA 4-6-20.pdf (p.39-51)

	signed release agreement 5-27-22.pdf (p.98-104)
	EASEMENT FOR GARDENING PURPOSES.pdf (p.105-107)
	RFID entry sytem for City Hall.pdf (p.108-124)
	Council cover sheet example RFID Locks.pdf (p.1)
	ASC.pdf (p.2-10)
	Builder Hardware.pdf (p.11)
	Jhonson Controls.pdf (p.12-17)


